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Letter to Shareholders

The year 2008 was difficult for CIRI. It was also a difficult 
year for many other well-managed businesses in our 
state and country. By the fourth quarter of 2008, the 
overwhelming problems within many global financial 
institutions and falling real estate and commodity prices 
created severe economic turmoil. The sharp business 
contraction and national recession that ensued impacted 
CIRI’s business interests and investments, but their 
performance varied widely. CIRI’s income from operations, 
natural resources, telecommunications and other non-
investment sources was generally strong in 2008, in most 
cases improved from the previous year. However, these 
gains were dragged down by losses in the value of CIRI’s 
private equity fund placements and marketable securities.  

Consequently, I must now report a net loss for 2008. Our 
Company’s net loss was $22.8 million in 2008, down from 
$56.6 million profit in 2007, and its total shareholders’ 
equity declined to $632.0 million in 2008 from $683.7 
million in 2007. 

While even unavoidable losses of any kind are 
unsatisfactory and difficult to report, be assured that 
CIRI remains a financially sound company. This is in part 
due to its cash reserves and the small amount of debt 
the Company carries. It is also a result of the profits it has 
earned over the years, including the years 2005, 2006 and 
2007. 

For many years now, CIRI has paid income taxes on its 
earnings. Realizing that liquidating a portion of CIRI’s 
marketable securities portfolio would allow us to rebalance 
our investment allocations and replace underperforming 
fund managers while legitimately utilizing the federal tax 
code to get a sizable income tax refund, we liquidated a 
substantial portion of our marketable securities portfolio 
at yearend. While I would rather have not experienced the 
loss in our marketable securities portfolio, the tax benefit, 
which will be realized in a cash refund of more than $20 
million in 2009, is welcomed. 

History shows that stock prices can fluctuate widely over 
the short term, but the underlying value of solid business 
assets is realized over longer periods. While it is impossible 
to say with any certainty when the economy and markets 
will stabilize, we continue to believe that a portfolio of 
investment securities is a good tool to manage financial 
assets over the long term and we have reentered the stock 
market. 

That being said, the economic slowdown presents 
CIRI with unprecedented investment opportunities. 
Therefore, we must prudently but expeditiously invest 
in businesses, particularly those that exhibit innovation, 
produce good cash flows and create value. As I prepared 
this message, I read with interest the letter of Berkshire 
Hathaway’s CEO, Warren E. Buffett, to his shareholders 
on Berkshire’s performance in 2008. Like CIRI, Berkshire 
suffered financially in 2008. Buffett says that while he 
likes buying underpriced securities, he likes buying fairly 
priced businesses even more. Today’s challenging business 
environment signals that an opportunity to acquire 
businesses at fair prices exists once again. 
     
CIRI’s Board of Directors and executive team have 
developed and implemented business strategies designed 
to maximize long-term growth and profitability. We 
understood when we developed CIRI’s strategic business 
plan in 2006 that market cycles and economic crises are 
inevitable, and we positioned the Company not only to 
survive downturns, but to use them to seize opportunities 
that will enable CIRI to thrive during subsequent upturns.

Our nation is suffering through a difficult period, but I am 
confident that the United States will regain its economic 
footing and recover to enjoy a bright future. Our nation 
has weathered many economic crises, from stock market 
crashes and world wars to savings and loan collapses and 
bursting dot-com bubbles, and it always perseveres and 
then rebuilds itself to new heights. Likewise, I believe that 
CIRI will endure this recession and emerge as a stronger 
company.

Dear Fellow Shareholders,
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We are not sitting still awaiting an economic recovery. 
We are thoughtfully moving forward on projects that are 
already in the works, many of which are described in the 
pages that follow. These projects include the development 
of Alaska’s first large-scale wind farm on CIRI’s land on Fire 
Island near Anchorage. Current plans call for infrastructure 
work to begin on the island this summer. Bucking the 
current national trend of stagnating development of 
retail shopping centers, work proceeds smoothly on the 
build-out and leasing of Tikahtnu Commons, with major 
retailers Target, Kohl’s and Lowe’s anchoring the retail and 
entertainment center. We look forward to the opening 
of additional stores this spring and summer and to the 
commencement of construction of the new Regal Theaters 
with much excitement. We are developing land in South 
Anchorage and construction has begun on the first major 
structure at Sonterra, a new Hyatt Place Hotel.   

With the guidance of the CIRI Board of Directors, we are 
not limiting ourselves to those projects already in the works, 
but are exploring other opportunities that are equally 
exciting and perhaps transformational for the Company. 
These projects, in earlier stages of development, focus 
on potential opportunities utilizing exciting new 
technologies suited to CIRI’s strengths. 

I am honored to have the opportunity to lead CIRI, and 
I feel great responsibility to my fellow shareholders, 
especially during these difficult economic times. 
CIRI has taken on and overcome many challenges 
since it was created by the Alaska Native Claims 
Settlement Act of 1971. I am proud that it has grown 
into one of Alaska’s most successful and respected 
corporations. I am grateful for the support shown by 
my fellow shareholders, the Board of Directors and my 
colleagues as we work together to ensure that CIRI will 
continue to benefit shareholders and their descendants 
for generations to come. 

CIRI’s best days lie ahead. 
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Profile and Strategies

David Isaak is married to CIRI shareholder 
Sharon Isaak and has worked for Peak 
Oilfield Service Co. on Alaska’s Kenai 
Peninsula for more than 16 years.
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CIRI is an Alaska Native regional corporation that was 
created by the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act 
of 1971 (ANCSA). ANCSA allowed Alaska Native people 
living at the time the act was passed to enroll as share-
holders of one of 12 Alaska-based regional corporations, 
and it established a framework for those corporations to 
provide economic, social and cultural benefits to current 
and future generations of shareholders.

Through the years, CIRI has grown into one of Alaska’s 
leading corporations, with business interests across 
Alaska and the United States. Its diversified portfolio of 
business operations and investments includes:

• Energy and resource development 

• Oilfield and heavy construction services

• Real estate development and management

• Tourism and destination resorts

• Renewable and alternative energy

• Telecommunications 

• Aerospace defense

• Private equity and venture capital investments

• Marketable securities investments

The Company created a family of nonprofit service 
organizations that provide health care, housing, employ-
ment, education and other social and cultural enrichment 
services for CIRI shareholders and their descendants, 
Alaska Natives and others. 

CIRI’s Board of Directors determined that the Company 
should have a multigenerational focus that provides 
economic benefits to current and future shareholders by 
investing corporate assets to maximize long-term growth 
and profitability. Toward this end, the Board balanced the 
interests of current and future generations of shareholders 
by adopting a policy that aligns dividend payments with 

shareholder equity. The Board also adopted a strategic 
business plan that seeks to fine-tune CIRI’s business 
strategies to adapt to the constantly changing business 
environment and maximize long-term performance and 
shareholder equity. CIRI’s key corporate strategies are to:

• Grow CIRI through prudent investments in a diverse 
portfolio of high-quality assets

• Develop CIRI’s Alaska business, energy and real estate 
interests

• Pursue opportunities uniquely suited to a well-capital-
ized Alaska Native corporation

• Team with strong partners that have the ability and 
incentive to make our joint ventures succeed

• Seek investments that reflect market trends and long-
term growth 

The Company is in a strong financial position with 
excellent liquidity and portfolio diversification. It is well 
positioned to ride out ongoing economic turmoil by using 
its unique combination of financial strength, experience, 
Alaska Native ownership and other business assets to 
capitalize on private sector and government investment 
opportunities. 

CIRI has well-developed and proven capabilities and 
infrastructure to pursue future growth opportunities. 
CIRI favors investments that benefit from its key assets, 
including real estate and resource holdings, development 
and management expertise, tourism-based investments 
and operations, construction service providers and 
industry relationships built upon joint-venture develop-
ments and partnerships.

Profile and Strategies
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Profile and Strategies

Seizing Opportunity

CIRI carefully tracks market trends, and its current growth-
oriented investments include:

Southcentral Alaska and Central Texas 
real estate development 

CIRI has substantial land holdings in its home region of 
Southcentral Alaska and in Central Texas, near San Antonio 
and Austin. These areas have growing populations and 
economies that are expected to outperform most other 
regions during and after the current slowdown. CIRI is 
using its property development and management 
capabilities and industry partnerships to carefully control 
project costs and risks. The Company is also seeking 
new real estate investment opportunities created by 
depressed markets.

Energy 

CIRI is pursuing a broad spectrum of energy project and 
technology investment opportunities. The Company is 
currently working to develop several renewable and 
alternative energy projects that are consistent with 
emerging world energy trends. It is also exploring electrical 
generation and transmission opportunities on the Alaska 
Railbelt grid and elsewhere. Additionally, the Company is 
evaluating investment opportunities in traditional oil and 
gas exploration and production. 

Diversity/minority procurement 

Minorities are the fastest growing population segments 
in the United States. Most Fortune 500 companies and 
other businesses are diversifying their supplier bases to 
reflect this change, and companies doing business with 
the federal government and many state governments 
are required to meet specific Minority Business Enterprise 
(MBE) subcontracting requirements. CIRI and several of its 
wholly- and majority-owned subsidiaries are MBE-certified. 

The Company is working 
to expand its existing 
business based on its MBE status 
and is pursuing new investment 
opportunities that could benefit from 
CIRI’s status as an Alaska Native corporation.

Private equity and venture capital investments

CIRI strategically invests in private equity and venture 
capital funds to help the Company maintain its 
investment diversity and participate in opportunities 
that are generally not available to individual investors. 
Well-managed private equity investment vehicles can 
provide opportunities to achieve better long-term returns 
than are produced by most traditional stock and bond 
investments.
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Alaska Native Millard Wooley 
is a Norcoast Mechanical plumber 

who is helping to construct Tikahtnu 
Commons in Anchorage, Alaska. 

CIRI, Cook Inlet Tribal Council and 
the Alaska Department of Labor 

joined forces to provide job training 
and increase Alaska Native hire rates 

at Tikahtnu Commons. 
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Real Estate Development 

CIRI is the largest private land owner in Southcentral 
Alaska with more than 600,000 acres of surface land. It also 
has real estate holdings in Texas, Hawaii and California. The 
Company is working to develop a real estate portfolio that 
blends well with the Company’s other interests and gener-
ates recurring revenue and stable cash flows.

The Company is actively developing several Alaska proj-
ects. CIRI partnered with Oakland, Calif.-based retail de-
veloper Browman Development Co. to build and operate 
Tikahtnu Commons, which will be the state’s largest retail 
and entertainment center. The nearly 1 million-square-
foot project is being built on a 95-acre site in northeast 
Anchorage. The project is anchored by Target and Kohl’s 
department stores and Lowe’s home improvement center. 
Target’s grand opening in October 2008 met with out-
standing success. A dozen additional stores are scheduled 
to open in 2009 including Best Buy, Sports Authority, 
Marble Slab Creamery, Fruitland Fresh, Sally Beauty Supply, 
Game Stop, Great Clips and other retail, entertainment and 
service businesses. A 16-theater Regal Cinemas complex, 
including Alaska’s first IMAX theater, and PetSmart are 
slated to open in 2010. 

CIRI is developing a 22-acre, mixed-use office and retail 
project in south Anchorage that is expected to feature 
100,000 square feet of office space in two buildings plus 
additional retail and service businesses. Site preparation 
for this project is scheduled to begin in spring 2009.

CIRI also owns 80 percent of Pacific Tower Properties Inc. 
(PTP), a leading Alaska commercial real estate manage-
ment and brokerage service. PTP manages CIRI’s commer-
cial property in Alaska and it markets its services statewide.

The Company is working on several large real estate de-
velopment projects outside of Alaska. In 2008 CIRI began 
site development construction on its Sonterra parcel in 
San Antonio, Texas. The 22-acre project is anticipated to 

include three multi-story office buildings with structured 
parking and two hotels when all phases are complete. 
CIRI has partnered with Dewey Weaver and Intermountain
Management LLC to build and manage a Hyatt Place 
Hotel at Sonterra. Construction on the 126-room Hyatt 
Place began in January 2009 and is expected to be 
completed and open in the second quarter 2010. CIRI is 
monitoring the economy and waiting until it stabilizes 
before starting construction on the office buildings.

CIRI is also developing the infrastructure for three resi-
dential subdivisions in and around San Antonio, Texas. 
Although the San Antonio housing market has not 
suffered as drastic a downturn as other areas of the 
country, lot sales to homebuilding companies have been 
slower than anticipated. The Company will continue its 
practice of developing the lots in these subdivisions in 
phases to correspond with demand by the homebuilding 
companies.

The Company is evaluating or developing real estate 
projects in other states. It continues to pursue environ-
mental permitting with its partner Menlo Equities for an 
office project on a CIRI-owned site in north San Diego, 
Calif. And CIRI is exploring its sale or development options 
for parcels it owns in Sacramento, Calif. and on the island 
of Kauai in Hawaii.

Tourism

CIRI Alaska Tourism Corp. (CATC) is CIRI’s wholly-owned 
Alaska tourism company and Southcentral Alaska’s largest 
shore-based tour operator. CATC operations include the 
Alaska Heritage Tours booking company, Kenai Fjords 
Tours and Prince William Sound Glacier Cruises marine 
day-cruise companies, the Talkeetna Alaskan Lodge near 
Denali National Park, the Seward Windsong Lodge near 
Kenai Fjords National Park, and the remote Kenai Fjords 
Wilderness Lodge on Fox Island in Resurrection Bay, also 
near Kenai Fjords National Park.

Business Operations and Ventures
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CATC delivered a strong financial performance in 
2008 despite extraordinarily high fuel and energy 
costs. The Talkeetna Alaskan Lodge had an out-
standing year, in part due to extending its season 
to accommodate unanticipated demand. CATC 
expanded its Seward, Alaska, operations in 2008 by 
adding 36 rooms to the Seward Windsong Lodge, 
which produced strong revenues and results for 
2008. Kenai Fjords Tours’ second 150-passenger 
catamaran, the Orca Voyager, was completed 
late in the visitor season and was immediately 
placed into service. CATC anticipates a soft 2009 
season because of the national economy and is 
aggressively managing its operations, tour 
schedules and employment levels to control 
costs and match demand.

CIRI descendants 
Nicole and Nashelle 
Hague work at 
Tikahtnu Commons 
Target store in 
Anchorage, Alaska.
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Business Operations and Ventures

CIRI owns a 32.6 percent interest in the Hyatt Regency 
Lost Pines Resort and Spa near Austin, Texas, with partners 
Woodbine Development Corp., the Oklahoma Publishing 
Co. and Hyatt Development Corp. The resort opened in 
June 2006. The 492-room, 405-acre resort has an 18-hole 
golf course and continues to establish itself as a premier 
destination hotel in Texas despite reduced resort demand 
as a result of the weak national economy.

Energy and Resource Development

CIRI owns approximately 1.3 million acres of Alaska subsur-
face land and is actively pursuing several resource related 
opportunities. Falling world energy prices have reduced oil 
and gas exploration in Alaska, but increasing Southcentral 
Alaska gas prices caused by declining natural gas reserves 
in the region are encouraging limited new exploration in 
the Cook Inlet basin. CIRI negotiated several leases and 
lease extensions in 2008 that include work commitments 
and company officials anticipate that at least two new 
exploratory wells will be drilled on CIRI land next winter. 

Through Wind Energy Alaska, CIRI and its partner, enXco 
Development Corp., are working to develop Alaska’s first 
large-scale wind energy project on CIRI’s Fire Island land 
near Anchorage. The project is expected to include 36 
turbines capable of producing 54 megawatts of electric-
ity, enough to power more than 19,000 homes. Fire Island 
infrastructure work and site preparation are scheduled to 
begin in 2009. Wind Energy Alaska is also prospecting for 
wind resources to build additional wind energy projects 
along Alaska’s Railbelt, and it is exploring other potential 
renewable energy developments including several low-
impact hydroelectric sites in Southcentral Alaska.

CIRI shareholder Sherry Cruise has worked for 
Kenai Fjords Tours in Seward, Alaska, since 1997. 
She earned her captain’s license in 2005.
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The Company’s Alaska land holdings include many mineral 
resources. The Company has an exploration agreement 
with Talon Gold to explore CIRI’s Farewell property for 
minerals and it continues to explore development options 
for CIRI’s Johnson River gold prospect. CIRI continues to 
promote new sand and gravel development from CIRI 
subsurface estate. 

Construction and Oilfield Services

CIRI and Houston-based Nabors Industries Inc. each own 
50 percent of Peak Oilfield Service Co. (Peak) and Alaska 
Interstate Construction LLC (AIC), two of Alaska’s top con-
struction and oilfield service businesses.

Peak provides a wide range of equipment, maintenance, 
support and construction services to oil, gas and chemical 
projects on Alaska’s North Slope, along the Kenai Peninsula, 
in Anchorage, the Matanuska Valley and Valdez. Peak also 
provides procurement, safety and engineering services, 
and its Precision Power subsidiary sells, installs and main-
tains AC and DC electric power systems across Alaska. Peak 
delivered a strong financial performance in 2008, helped 
by increased Alaska oil and gas exploration that was driven 
by record-high energy prices early in the year. CIRI expects 
that declines in Alaska North Slope crude prices will reduce 
demand for Peak’s oil and gas exploration services in 2009.

AIC provides construction services for a variety of public 
works, mining, oil and gas projects. The company worked 
on several large civil construction projects in 2008 and is 
pursuing several new Alaska civil construction projects in 
2009, including projects funded by the recently passed 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. CIRI 
expects that reduced Alaska crude and commodity prices 
will lessen demand for AIC services in 2009. 

Telecommunications

CIRI has been in the telecommunications business for 
more than a decade. A CIRI-controlled joint venture with 
T-Mobile currently owns 36 wireless licenses and is now 
providing wireless telecommunication services in markets 
including Seattle, Denver, Indianapolis, San Antonio, Austin 
and Kansas City. CIRI continues to explore new telecommu-
nications business opportunities

Government Contracting 

ANC Research & Development LLC (ANC R&D) is CIRI’s 
Small Business Administration 8(a)-certified government 
contracting company. ANC R&D’s construction division 
completed a bridge construction project across the White 
Chuck River in the state of Washington and several smaller 
contracts in 2008. The company’s aerospace defense 
division won a contract with U.S. Strategic Command 
(U.S. STRATCOM) and performed a separate subcontract 
at White Sands Missile Range in New Mexico in 2008. ANC 
R&D expects to do additional work for U.S. STRATCOM and 
White Sands Missile Range in 2009.

Private Equity and Investment Securities

CIRI maintains a diverse portfolio of managed funds and 
securities. These investments include short-term instru-
ments that keep CIRI funds liquid while future investment 
decisions and other instruments are selected to produce 
long-term capital appreciation. CIRI has invested in a 
variety of private equity limited partnerships, managed by 
some of the most respected firms in the industry. These 
partnerships include funds dedicated to opportunities 
in power and energy, international markets and, most 
recently, in the distressed financial sector.

11



Shareholders, Descendants and Community

CIRI has more than 7,600 Alaska Native shareholders of Athabascan and Southeast Indian, 
Inupiat and Yup’ik Eskimo, Alutiiq and Aleut descent. It is the most culturally diverse of the 
12 ANCSA regional corporations because its home region includes Anchorage, Alaska’s 
largest population center with residents who have moved from other parts of the state.

The Company created and initially funded a family of nonprofit service providers 
to serve CIRI shareholders’, descendants’ and other Alaska Natives’ social, 
educational, health care and cultural needs. These nonprofits provide 
needed services and education programs that reflect traditional Alaska 
Native values. They also help strengthen families and communities, 
and provide direct or indirect benefits to virtually every Alaskan. 

CIRI staff members, directors and shareholders take great pride in 
the Company’s reputation as an outstanding corporate citizen. 
In 2008 CIRI supported a wide variety of nonprofit cultural and 
social service organizations that help the community by 
providing and funding services that range from homeless 
shelters to health care services, advocacy programs, 
affordable housing, Alaska Native arts, radio programming 
and more.

In addition to providing financial support, CIRI actively 
participates in many other community activities. It 
hosts an annual charity golf tournament that gener-
ates more than $100,000 to support youth services 
and education.

CIRI renewed its agreement with Cook Inlet Tribal 
Council and the State of Alaska to train and place 
CIRI shareholders and Alaska Native construction 
and retail workers in jobs created by CIRI’s Tikahtnu 
Commons development and other projects. CIRI 
supports the Friends of the Jesse Lee Home in its 
effort to rebuild a historic Alaska orphanage and 
school into a statewide leadership program. CIRI 
supports its employees’ efforts to share their time, 
expertise and resources with charitable organizations, 
because CIRI’s staff, directors and shareholders 
recognize that all of these donations and activities 
are investments that will pay off by improving the 
community in which we live and work.
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Alaska Native Heritage Center
8800 Heritage Center Drive
Anchorage, Alaska 99504
907.330.8000 (tel)
907.330.8030 (fax)
info@alaskanative.net
www.alaskanative.net

Alaska Native Justice Center
3600 San Jeronimo Drive, Suite 264
Anchorage, Alaska 99508
907.793.3550 (tel)
907.793.3570 (fax)
dwing@anjc.net
www.anjc.org

The CIRI Foundation
3600 San Jeronimo Drive, Suite 256
Anchorage, Alaska 99508
907.793.3575 (tel)
907.793.3585 (fax)
TCF@thecirifoundation.org
www.thecirifoundation.org

Cook Inlet Housing Authority
3510 Spenard Road, Suite 100
Anchorage, Alaska 99503
907.793.3000 (tel)
907.793.3070 (fax)
info@cookinlethousing.org
www.cookinlethousing.org

Cook Inlet Tribal Council
3600 San Jeronimo Drive, 4th floor
Anchorage, Alaska 99508
907.793.3600 (tel)
907.793.3602 (fax)
info@citci.com

Alaska’s People Inc. 
(a division of Cook Inlet Tribal 
Council)
3600 San Jeronimo Drive, 3rd floor
Anchorage, Alaska 99508
907.793.3378 (tel)
907.793.3392 (fax)

Koahnic Broadcast Corp.
3600 San Jeronimo Drive, Suite 480
Anchorage, Alaska 99508
907.793.3500 (tel)
907.793.3536 (fax)
feedback@knba.org
www.knba.org

Southcentral Foundation
4501 Diplomacy Drive
Anchorage, Alaska 99508
907.729.4955 (tel)
907.729.5000 (fax)
www.southcentralfoundation.org 

CIRI Related Nonprofits

CIRI shareholder Dr. Tamara Pickett works in the Family 
Medicine Clinic at the Anchorage Native Primary Care 
Center, operated by Southcentral Foundation. 
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CIRI (Cook Inlet Region, Inc.)
2525 C Street, Suite 500
Anchorage, Alaska 99503
or
PO Box 93330
Anchorage, Alaska 99509-3330
907.274.8638 (tel)
907.279.8836 (fax)
www.ciri.com 

Alaska Interstate Construction LLC
601 West Fifth Avenue, Suite 400
Anchorage, Alaska 99501
907.562.2792 (tel)
907.562.4179 (fax)
info@aicllc.com
www.aicllc.com 

ANC Research & Development LLC
360 Command View, Rm E 1332
Colorado Springs, Colorado 80915
719.474.8222 (tel)
719.474.8029 (fax)
www.ancrd.com

CIRI Land Development Co.
2525 C Street, Suite 500
Anchorage, Alaska 99503
907.274.8638 (tel)
907.263.5190 (fax)

Pacific Tower Properties Inc.
2550 Denali Street, Suite 500
Anchorage, Alaska 99503
907.279.0541 (tel)
907.258.9300 (fax)
www.pacifictower.com

Peak Oilfield Service Co.
2525 C Street, Suite 201
Anchorage, Alaska 99503
907.263.7000 (tel)
907.263.7070 (fax)
peak@peakalaska.com
www.peakalaska.com

         Precision Power LLC
         200 E. Commercial Drive
         Palmer, Alaska 99645
         907.746.7797 
         907.746.7772
         precisionpower@prepower.net

Wind Energy Alaska
2525 C Street, Suite 500
Anchorage, AK 99503
907.274.8638 (tel)
907.279.8836 (fax)
www.windenergyalaska.com

CIRI Alaska Tourism Corp.
513 W. 4th Avenue
Anchorage, Alaska 99501
907.777.2800 (tel)
907.777.2887 (fax)

         Anchorage Reservations Office
         509 W. Fourth Avenue
         Anchorage, Alaska 99501
         907.777.2805 (tel)
         907.777.2888 (fax)
         888.478.3346 (toll free)
         info@alaskaheritagetours.com
         www.alaskaheritagetours.com
    
         Kenai Fjords Tours
         Kenai Fjords Wilderness Lodge
         PO Box 1889
         Seward, Alaska 99664-1889
         907.224.8068 (tel)
         907.224.8934 (fax)
         info@kenaifjords.com
         www.kenaifjords.com

         Prince William Sound 
         Glacier Cruises
         Pier 1
         Whittier, Alaska 99693
         907.277.2131 (tel)
         907.777.2888 (fax)
         info@princewilliamsound.com
         www.princewilliamsound.com

         Seward Windsong Lodge
         PO Box 2301 
         Seward, Alaska 99664-2301
         907.224.7116 (tel)
         907.224.7118 (fax)
         info@sewardwindsong.com
         www.sewardwindsong.com

         Talkeetna Alaskan Lodge
         PO Box 727
         Talkeetna, Alaska 99676-0727
         907.733-9500 (tel)
         907.733-9545 (fax)
         info@talkeetnalodge.com
         www.talkeetnalodge.com

Key CIRI Businesses
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Financial Highlights 
(Financial Highlights 2008)

DRAFT 3/26/2009 10:34 AM

 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(in thousands, except equity per share)

Net income (loss) $ (22,817)      56,574       108,798     22,306       8,369          

Total assets 687,326     726,284     697,921     636,776     725,232     
 

Shareholders' equity 632,037     683,684     655,440     561,734     558,361     

Shareholders' equity per share 1,006.75    1,089.02    1,044.03    894.77       889.39       

Shareholder dividends 22,218       21,301       19,461       19,461       74,551       

Cumulative distributions and dividends
  to shareholders since inception 899,371     877,153     855,852     836,391     816,931     

Cumulative Section 7(i) and 7(j) distributions
  to others 225,382     215,341     206,977     200,584     196,891     

  2004                   2005            2006                          2007                   2008

5-Year Financial Performance (in thousands)
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Consolidated Financial Statements 

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Consolidated Balance Sheets)

DRAFT 3/26/2009 10:36 AM

December 31, 2008 2007

Assets   
Cash and cash equivalents $ 83,814      40,680           
Marketable securities (note 4 and 9) 24,340      226,793        
Receivables from investment security sales (note 4) 54,494      -                      
Trade and other receivables 14,685      8,473             
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (notes 9 and 15) 3,170         5,664             
Income tax receivable 30,771      7,284             
Deutsche Telekom exchange rights agreement (note 5 and 9) 115,479   104,986        
Investments in partnerships and limited liability companies (note 6) 157,893   147,445        
Real estate investments, net of accumulated depreciation of $7,824,000
  and $7,325,000 for 2008 and 2007, respectively (note 7) 146,166   136,295        
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $33,547,000
  and $29,503,000 for 2008 and 2007, respectively (note 8) 46,798      43,500           
Natural resource investments 895             895                
Goodwill (note 2) 3,200         -                      
Other 5,621         4,269             

Total assets $ 687,326    726,284        

Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Notes payable and obligations under capital leases (note 10) $ 12,456      9,658             
Accounts payable 7,604         7,399             
Accrued liabilities (notes 15 and 16) 4,579         8,161             
Due to other regions, at-large shareholders and village corporations (note 11) 18,699      11,315           
Deferred income taxes 10,329      3,928             
Other 1,622         2,139             

Total liabilities 55,289      42,600           

Shareholders' equity:
Common stock of no par value (note 12) -                   -                      
Paid-in capital 209,159   209,159        
Retained earnings 422,478   467,522        
Accumulated other comprehensive income - unrealized gains and losses   
  on marketable securities (note 4) 400             7,003             

Total shareholders' equity 632,037   683,684        

Commitments and contingencies (notes 6, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15 and 16)

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 687,326   726,284        

 (in thousands)

(See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.)
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Cook Inlet Region, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006

Revenues:
Real estate $ 9,738        10,194       4,937        
Construction and government services 10,589     16,873       17,162      
Telecommunications (note 5) 10,881     10,560       9,069        
Tourism 23,934     23,218       93,466      
Natural resources, net of amounts distributable to others of $17,425,000, 
  $10,703,000 and $8,645,000 for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively 16,856     10,691       8,030        
Private equities (3,897)      24,902       40,065      
Investment securities (56,982)    23,003       18,998      

Total revenues 11,119      119,441     191,727     

Expenses:
Real estate 7,077        4,991         3,217        
Construction and government services 5,696        2,017         1,018        
Telecommunications 7                 58              113           
Tourism 24,187     21,710       30,339      
Natural resources 1,696        1,473         1,557        
Private equities 973            623            580           
Investment securities 445            851            657           
General and administrative and shareholder relations 11,724     13,372       14,296      
Donations to Alaska Native not-for-profit organizations 410            356            427           

Total expenses 52,215      45,451       52,204        

Income (loss) before income taxes and discontinued operations (41,096)    73,990       139,523   

Income tax benefit (provision)(note 14) 18,279     (17,658)      (19,052)    

Income (loss) before discontinued operations (22,817)    56,332       120,471   

Income (loss) from discontinuation of gaming operations:
Loss from gaming operations, net of income tax benefits of $3,481,000 (note 13) -                  -                  (6,466)       

Income (loss) on sale and write-down of gaming assets, net of income tax provision
  of $142,000 for 2007 and benefit of $2,804,000 for 2006 (note 13) -                  242            (5,207)       

Net income (loss) $ (22,817)     56,574       108,798     

Income (loss) per share of common stock  
   Net income (loss) before discontinued operations (36.34)      89.73         191.89      

Operating loss from discontinued operations, net -                  -                  (10.30)       
Net income (loss) on sale and write-down of gaming assets and other costs -                  0.39           (8.29)         

 $ (36.34)       90.12          173.30        

       (in thousands, except income per share)

(See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.)



18

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income

(Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income)

DRAFT 3/26/2009 10:37 AM

Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

Common Accumulated
Stock Other

of No Par   Paid-in  Retained Comprehensive
Value  Capital  Earnings Income Total

# of shares

Balance as of January 1, 2006 627,800     $ 209,159    342,934     9,641             561,734     

Net income -                   -                  108,798     -                       108,798     
Change in valuation adjustment on marketable
  securities, net of $2,355,000 of deferred 
  income taxes (note 4) -                   -                  -                   4,381             4,381          

Total comprehensive income 113,179     
Elders' Benefit Program distribution (note 12) -                   -                  (12)              -                       (12)              
Cash distributions - $31.00 per share (note 12) -                   -                  (19,461)      -                       (19,461)      

Balance as of December 31, 2006 627,800     209,159    432,259     14,022           655,440     

Net income -                   -                  56,574        -                       56,574        
Change in valuation adjustment on marketable
  securities, net of $3,437,000 of deferred 
  income taxes (note 4) -                   -                  -                   (7,019)            (7,019)         

Total comprehensive income 49,555        
Elders' Benefit Program distribution (note 12) -                   -                  (10)              -                       (10)              
Cash distributions - $33.93 per share (note 12) -                   -                  (21,301)      -                       (21,301)      

Balance as of December 31, 2007 627,800     209,159    467,522     7,003             683,684     
 

Net loss -                   -                  (22,817)      -                       (22,817)      
Change in valuation adjustment on marketable
  securities, net of $3,879,000 of deferred 
  income taxes (note 4) -                   -                  -                   (6,603)            (6,603)         

Total comprehensive loss (29,420)      
Elders' Benefit Program distribution (note 12) -                   -                  (9)                 -                       (9)                 
Cash distributions - $35.39 per share (note 12) -                   -                  (22,218)      -                       (22,218)      

Balance as of December 31, 2008 627,800    $ 209,159  422,478    400                 632,037    

(in thousands, except number of shares)

(See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.)

Consolidated Financial Statements
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Years ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006
(in thousands) 

Cash flows from operations: 
Net income (loss)  $ (22,817)     56,574       108,798  
(Income) loss from discontinued operations, net of tax -                   (242)           11,673     
Reconciliation of net income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Earnings of partnerships and limited liability companies, net of distributions 18,886      1,373         (20,843)    
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 4,529         3,991         3,812       
Amortization of premiums and discounts on marketable securities 44                148            317           
(Gain) loss on sale of assets 36,056      (27,962)     16,909     
Accrued income on exchange rights agreement (10,493)     (9,540)        (8,672)      
Write-downs of assets 11,545      8,652         7,936       
Deferred income taxes 10,279      11,365       (32,633)    
Changes in operating assets and liabilities (note 3) (25,477)     (18,937)     27,422     

Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 22,552      25,422       114,719  
Net cash used by operating activities of discontinued operations -                   (1,234)        (5,136)      

Net cash provided by operations 22,552      24,188       109,583  

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 223,099   195,237    83,072     
Purchases of marketable securities (103,223)  (223,850)   (78,771)    
Proceeds from disposals of telecommunications operations -                   660            -                
Proceeds from disposals of tourism investments 3                  21               5,005       
Proceeds from disposals of real estate investments 1,470         10,117       3,662       
Capital returned from investments in private equities 3,421         10,503       3,767       
Capital returned from investments in partnerships and limited liability companies 10,119      12,787       31,532     
Cash invested in real estate (15,051)     (58,329)     (33,181)    
Cash invested in operating property and equipment (7,433)       (5,904)        (2,748)      
Cash invested in private equities (25,562)     (17,465)     (14,610)    
Cash invested in partnerships and limited liability companies (46,880)     (777)           (10,164)    

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities of continuing operations 39,963      (77,000)     (12,436)    
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities of discontinued operations -                   3                 (115)         

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 39,963      (76,997)     (12,551)    

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Principal payments on notes payable (1,021)       (63)             (28)            
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 3,867         -                  -                
Distributions to Elders' Benefit Program (9)                 (10)             (12)            
Distributions to shareholders (22,218)     (21,301)     (19,461)    

Net cash used in financing activities by continuing operations (19,381)     (21,374)     (19,501)    
Net cash used in financing activities by discontinued operations -                   -                  (155)         

Net cash used in financing activities (19,381)     (21,374)     (19,656)    

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 43,134      (74,183)     77,376     
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 40,680    114,863    37,487   

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ 83,814      40,680       114,863  

(See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.)
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(1)   Organization 
 
Investments and Operations 
Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI) has investments in real estate, construction and government services, telecommunications, 
Alaska tourism and out-of-Alaska destination resorts, natural resources and energy, private equities and marketable 
securities. CIRI’s investments include operations in Alaska and throughout the lower-48 states through joint ventures 
with others or independently held. 
 
Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act 
CIRI was incorporated in 1972 as one of 12 Alaska-based for-profit, private regional corporations created pursuant to the 
Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act of 1971 (ANCSA). Each Alaska Native initially enrolled in CIRI was issued 100 shares 
of common stock.  Today, CIRI is owned by more than 7,600 shareholders of predominately Athabascan and Southeast 
Indian, Inupiat and Yup´ik Eskimo, Aleut and Alutiiq heritage, as further described in note 12. ANCSA provided CIRI with 
a monetary entitlement of $34,363,000, which was recorded as paid-in capital, and the right to select a certain amount 
of land for conveyance from the federal government. To date, CIRI has received more than 90% of its land entitlement.  
 
(2)   Summary of significant accounting policies 
 
Principles of Consolidation 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CIRI and its majority owned subsidiaries 
(the Company). In accordance with the FASB Interpretation No. 46(R), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, the 
Company also consolidates any variable interest entities (VIEs) of which it is the primary beneficiary, as defined. When 
the Company does not have a controlling interest in an entity, but exerts a significant influence over the entity, the 
Company applies the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the Company’s share of the earnings or 
losses of each investment is included in the consolidated statements of income, and the undistributed earnings or 
losses are reported as an increase or decrease in investments in partnership and limited liability companies. 
Investments in other partnerships and limited liability companies are accounted for using the cost method of 
accounting. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
Financial Statement Presentation 
The Company presents its balance sheets on an unclassified basis, which does not separate current assets and current 
liabilities on the face of the statement. This practice is common for companies whose primary activity is investing. 
 
Reclassifications 
In order to make them comparable with the 2008 presentation, the 2007 and 2006 consolidated financial statements 
presented in this report include certain reclassifications. 
 
Use of Estimates 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of the dates of 
the financial statements and revenue and expenses for the periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the useful lives of fixed assets; allowances for 
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doubtful accounts; the valuation of derivatives, deferred tax assets, fixed assets, inventories, investments, and notes 
receivable; and reserves for environmental liabilities, income tax uncertainties and other contingencies. The current 
economic environment has increased the degree of uncertainty inherent in those estimates and assumptions. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and investments in money market funds. 
 
Marketable Securities  
The Company has classified all of its marketable securities as available for sale.  Marketable securities are stated at fair 
value, with changes in unrealized holding gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported as a net amount in the 
consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income. Realized gains and losses on 
sales of securities are computed using the specific identification method of determining the carrying cost of securities 
sold. A decline in the market value of any available-for-sale security below cost that is deemed to be other-than-
temporary results in an impairment to reduce the carrying amount to fair value. The impairment is charged to earnings 
and a new cost basis for the security is established. To determine whether an impairment is other-than-temporary, the 
Company considers whether it has the ability and intent to hold the investment until a market price recovery and 
considers whether evidence indicating the cost of the investment is recoverable outweighs evidence to the contrary. 
Evidence considered in this assessment includes the reasons for the impairment, the severity and duration of the 
impairment, changes in value subsequent to year-end, forecasted performance of the investee, and the general market 
condition in the geographic area or industry the investee operates. 
 
Fair Value Measurements 
On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 
157, Fair Value Measurements, for fair value measurements of financial assets and financial liabilities and for fair value 
measurements of nonfinancial items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a 
recurring basis. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. SFAS No. 157 also establishes a 
framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. See note 9. 
 
Comprehensive Income  
Comprehensive income consists of net income and net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, which includes an 
estimate for deferred income taxes, and is presented in the consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity 
and comprehensive income.  
 
Derivatives   
The Company accounts for derivatives following the provisions of SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments 
and Hedging Activities, as amended. The Company’s derivatives are stated at estimated fair value, with unrealized 
holding gains (losses) included in earnings on the statements of operations. 
 
Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of property and equipment, which consists of operating 
buildings, vessels and marine equipment, and furniture, fixtures and other equipment, is provided over the estimated 
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useful lives of the respective assets, principally using the straight-line method.  Property and equipment held under 
capital lease and leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful lives 
using the straight-line method.  Depreciation and amortization are provided over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Years
Land improvements 9-30
Buildings and improvements 5-40
Leasehold improvements 3-40
Vessels and marine equipment 5-18
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2-12

Fair value of the surface and subsurface estate received pursuant to ANCSA, other than certain federal properties, was 
not determinable within reasonable limits at the time of conveyance and, therefore, no value has been recorded in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements for these assets. Federal surplus, excess and certain other properties 
received pursuant to settlement of the Company’s ANCSA entitlement were recorded as an addition to property and 
paid-in capital at fair value, either as agreed between the Company and the federal government or as determined by a 
successful bid of acre-equivalent values.  The Company's basis in surface and subsurface estate for financial statement 
purposes may differ from the basis for income tax reporting purposes. Because the fair value of lands received pursuant 
to ANCSA, other than certain federal properties, has not been recorded, the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements do not reflect depletion as a charge against production revenues from lands received pursuant to ANCSA. 
 

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, long-lived assets, such 
as property and equipment, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If circumstances require a long-lived asset or asset group be 
tested for possible impairment, the Company first compares undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by that 
asset or asset group to its carrying value. If the carrying value of the long-lived asset or asset group is not recoverable 
on an undiscounted cash flow basis, an impairment is recognized to the extent that the carrying value exceeds its fair 
value. Fair value is determined through various valuation techniques including discounted cash flow models, quoted 
market values and third-party independent appraisals. 
 
Goodwill 
Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in a purchase 
business combination. Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a business combination and determined to have an 
indefinite useful life are not amortized, but instead tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with the 
provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. The Company performs its annual impairment review of 
goodwill at December 31, and when a triggering event occurs between the annual impairment tests. In early 2008, the 
Company acquired the majority ownership of a property management and brokerage company and recognized 
$3,200,000 of goodwill on the transaction.  
 
The carrying value of goodwill related to the Company’s Alaskan tourism operations was tested for impairment in 
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142 and resulted in a $7,922,000 charge against income in 2006. The fair 
value of the Alaskan operations was determined using a combination of the income approach and market approach.  
Under the income approach the Company estimated fair value based upon expected future cash flows. Under the 
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market approach the Company estimated fair value based upon market multiples for comparable companies.   The 
Company based its fair value estimates on assumptions it believed to be reasonable at the time of analysis. 
 
Commitments and Contingencies 
Liabilities for loss contingencies, including environmental remediation costs not within the scope of SFAS No. 143, 
Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines, penalties and other 
sources, are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the assessment and/or 
remediation can be reasonably estimated. Legal costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are expensed as 
incurred. Accruals for estimated losses from environmental remediation obligations generally are recognized no later 
than completion of the remedial feasibility study.  Such accruals are adjusted as further information develops or 
circumstances change. Costs of expected future expenditures for environmental remediation obligations are not 
discounted to their present value. 
 
Income Per Share 
Income per share is based upon the aggregate number of Class A shares outstanding (627,800 shares). 
 
(3) Consolidated statements of cash flows supplemental disclosures 

Years ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006

(in thousands)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities that
   provided (used) cash from continuing operations:

Receivables $ (6,278)      (1,416)       (1,760)       
Income taxes (23,487)    (19,767)     18,755      
Prepaid expenses and other assets (1,136)      199            (55)             
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,554        952            4,571        
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (4,514)      (1,244)       3,840        
Liabilities to other regions, at-large shareholders
    and village corporations 7,384        2,339        2,071        

$ (25,477)    (18,937)     27,422      

In late 2007, the Company acquired the interests held by others in three separate real estate partnerships through non-
cash transactions as discussed in note 6.  These partnerships are consolidated in the accompanying financial statements 
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2007 and thereafter, as the Company now owns 100% of these entities.  
Contributions of land with carrying values totaling $14,510,000 were contributed into real estate joint ventures in 2007.  
The Company accepted notes receivable of $7,000, $332,000 and $70,000 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, as 
partial proceeds from the sale of real estate properties. 
 
In December 2008, the Company sold investment securities in which the proceeds totaling $54,494,000 were received 
in early January 2009.  As such the $54,494,000 is recorded as receivables from investment security sales as of December 
31, 2008. 
 
In 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company paid interest expense totaling $763,000, $87,000 and $3,684,000, respectively. 
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In 2008, the Company received income tax refunds totaling $5,036,000, net of income tax payments. The Company paid 
income taxes totaling $26,361,000 in 2007 and $32,900,000 in 2006, net of tax refunds. 
 
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, acquisitions and dispositions of all highly liquid investments 
except for cash and cash equivalents are included in marketable securities. 

 
(4)     Marketable securities and other comprehensive income 
 
Marketable Securities 
The amortized cost and estimated fair value of marketable securities, which the Company classifies as available for sale, 
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows: 
 

Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

 (in thousands)
2008

Debt securities $ 21,916       634         -               22,550      
Equity securities 1,790         -               -               1,790        

$ 23,706       634          -               24,340      

2007

Debt securities $ 80,667       295         (756)        80,206      
Equity securities 135,010    13,978    (2,401)     146,587    

$ 215,677    14,273     (3,157)     226,793    

 
The amortized cost and fair values of debt securities at December 31, 2008 are listed by contractual maturity below. 
 

  Amortized Fair
  Cost  Value

(in thousands)

Within one year $ 537          537           
After one year through five 8,152       8,436        
After five years through ten 8,664       8,965        
After ten years 4,563       4,612        

$ 21,916    22,550      

 
The Company realized gains of $14,544,000, $23,677,000 and $9,074,000 and losses of $51,162,000, $3,922,000 and 
$1,536,000, on the sales of marketable securities during 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Net proceeds less carrying 
cost adjusted for amortization of premiums and discounts was the basis for determining gains and losses.  During 2008,  
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the Company invested in two partnerships that invest in domestic equity securities. Prior to December 31, 2008, the 
Company sold its interests in these two partnerships and realized losses of $18,566,000. Proceeds totaling $54,494,000 
were due to the Company as of December 31, 2008, from the sale of investment securities. These funds were received 
by the Company during the first few days of 2009. 
 
The Company evaluates whether unrealized losses on investment securities indicate other-than-temporary impairment. 
Based on this evaluation, the Company recognized other-than-temporary impairment losses of $4,209,000 on 
marketable securities in 2008. The remaining marketable securities held by the Company at December 31, 2008 had 
unrealized gains of $634,000 as noted in the schedule above. These unrealized gains are reported in the shareholders’ 
equity section of the accompanying balance sheet for December 31, 2008 as accumulated other comprehensive income 
of $400,000, which is the unrealized gains of $634,000 less income taxes of $234,000. 
 
In 2007, securities managed by third parties and with market values less than their carrying costs at December 31, 2007 
were written down to their fair values resulting in a loss of $8,652,000. Gross unrealized losses on marketable securities 
and the fair value of the related securities aggregated by the length of time that individual securities have been in a 
continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2007, were as follows: 
 

Less than 12 Months 12 Months  or More Total
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair

Losses Value Losses Value Losses Value

(in thousands)

Debt securities  $ (663)     62,215  (93)         3,876   (756)       66,091   
Equity securities (2,401)  24,587  -              -            (2,401)   24,587   

 $ (3,064)  86,802  (93)         3,876   (3,157)   90,678   

2007

 
 
There were no securities held as of December 31, 2008 in an unrealized loss position.  
 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Components of other comprehensive income for the three years ended December 31 are as follows: 
 

December 31, 2008 2007 2006

(in thousands)
Net unrealized holding gains (losses) on marketable
  securities arising during the year $ (47,100)     647           14,274  
Deferred income taxes 3,879        3,437       (2,355)   
Reclassification adjustment for impairment 4,209        8,625       -             
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses    
  realized in net income 32,409      (19,728)    (7,538)   

Net valuation adjustment $ (6,603)       (7,019)      4,381    
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(5)   Deutsche Telekom exchange rights agreement 
 
Deutsche Telekom, AG (DT) is a large international telecommunications company that operates in the United States 
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, T-Mobile USA, Inc. The Company and DT formed Cook Inlet/VS GSM VII PCS 
Holdings, LLC (CIVS VII), as described in note 6. Pursuant to a certain agreement with T-Mobile USA, Inc. (Exchange 
Rights), the Company has the right, but not the obligation, to exchange its interest in CIVS VII for a value equal to its 
initial investment in CIVS VII plus 10% compounded annually or 4,128,000 shares of DT stock, whichever is greater. 
Payment to the company will be in DT shares or, if elected by DT, cash. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company 
carried the Exchange Rights at fair value of $115,479,000 and $104,986,000, respectively. The Company recognized 
income of $10,493,000, $9,540,000 and $8,672,000 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, from this investment. 

 
(6)     Investments in partnerships and limited liability companies 
 
The Company has unconsolidated investments in partnerships and limited liability companies related to real estate, 
construction services, resort hotels, telecommunications, natural resources, private equities and marketable securities.  
The following is a summary of those investments at December 31, 2008 and 2007: 
 

December 31, 2008 2007

(in thousands)
Investments in partnerships and limited liability companies:

Investments reported using the equity method of accounting:
Real estate $ 18,030     14,865       
Construction services 59,468     57,927       
Resort hotels 10,646     14,291       
Natural resources (154)          9                 
Private equities 5,439        5,445         
Investment securities 11,074     14,002       

Investments reported using the cost method of accounting:
Private equities 52,690     39,531       
Investment securities 700           1,375         

$ 157,893   147,445    

 
Real Estate  
The Company invested in a limited liability company formed to develop and operate a retail and entertainment center 
in northeast Anchorage, Alaska.  In addition, the Company held investments in several partnerships formed to purchase 
land in and around San Antonio and Austin, Texas for the development and sale of residential lots to homebuilding 
companies.  As discussed below, the Company now directly holds 100% of these residential developments.   
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Summary financial information for these unconsolidated entities is as follows: 
 

Combined Balance Sheets
(in thousands)

December 31, 2008 2007 December 31, 2008 2007
Assets: Liabilities and equity:
Current assets $ 12,509 699       Current liabilities $ 6,847    1,160     
Noncurrent assets 16,920 11,903 Noncurrent liabilities 3,551    -              

Equity 19,031  11,442   

$ 29,429 12,602 $ 29,429  12,602   

Equity allocable to the Company $ 18,030    14,865     

Combined Statement of Income
(in thousands)

Year ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006
Revenues $ 8,614     17           -                 
Expenses 1,025     -               636           

Net income $ 7,589     17           (636)          

Net income allocable to the Company $ 3,165         8                    (315)               

 
In 2007, the Company contributed $8,426,000 and approximately 84 acres of land for a 50% interest in North Anchorage 
Real Estate Investors, LLC (NAREI), which was formed to develop and operate Tikahtnu Commons, a retail and 
entertainment center in northeast Anchorage.  Browman Development Company, Inc., which has developed several 
large retail centers across the western United States, is the other 50% member in NAREI.  The Company recognized 
income of $3,165,000 from this investment in 2008. 
 
In 2006, the Company invested in three limited partnerships and held a 49.5% interest in each.  These partnerships were 
formed to purchase land in Texas for the development and sale of residential lots in and around San Antonio and Austin, 
Texas.  Lot sales are to a few select national or large regional homebuilding companies on a phased, multiple-lot 
schedule.  In 2007, the Company sold its interest in one partnership and purchased the 50.5% interests in the other two 
partnerships.  As these two entities are now wholly-owned by the Company, their financial results are consolidated in 
the accompanying financial statements. 
 
In early 2007, the Company contributed 320 acres of land west of San Antonio for a 50% interest in KD CIRI I, LLC, 
formed to develop and sell residential lots. Lot sales will be to a few select national or large regional homebuilding 
companies on a phased, multiple-lot schedule. Pursuant to provisions in the limited liability agreement, the Company 
removed the managing member in late 2007 as certain material deadlines were not met. The Company has continued 
development of the property. As KD CIRI I, LLC is now wholly-owned by the Company, the financial results are 
consolidated in the accompanying financial statements. 
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Construction Services 
The Company is a partner in Peak Oilfield Service Co. (Peak) and a member of Alaska Interstate Construction, LLC (AIC). 
These entities provide construction, mining services, equipment maintenance and oilfield services, primarily in Alaska. 
Summary financial information for these unconsolidated entities is as follows: 
 

Combined Balance Sheets
(in thousands)

December 31, 2008 2007 December 31, 2008 2007
Assets: Liabilities and equity:

Current assets $ 52,476    57,494     Current liabilities $ 24,211   27,291          
Noncurrent assets 100,268  91,626     Noncurrent liabilities 4,511      386               

Equity 124,022 121,443       

$ 152,744  149,120   $ 152,744 149,120       

December 31, 2008 2007

Equity allocable to the Company $ 57,970      56,429                
Equity method goodwill 1,498         1,498                   

$ 59,468      57,927                
 

 
Combined Statements of Income

(in thousands)

Years ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006
Revenues $ 267,418 265,633 241,556   
Expenses 252,345 233,933 207,144   

Net income $ 15,073   31,700   34,412     

Net income allocable to the Company $ 6,036         15,869      16,895         

 
AIC is a limited liability company in which Peak Alaska Ventures, Inc. (PAVI), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIRI, and 
Nabors Alaska Services Corp. (NASC) each held a 40% interest and Pacific Diversified Investments, Inc. (PDI) held a 20% 
interest. In early 2005, pursuant to the terms of the limited liability company operating agreement, PAVI and NASC 
notified PDI of their intent to purchase PDI’s 20% interest in AIC. Simultaneously, PAVI and NASC removed PDI as 
managing member and became co-managers of AIC. AIC’s Operating Agreement (Operating Agreement) provided for 
the payment of 1.5 times the carrying value of PDI’s interest, or $12,000,000. 
 
Subsequent to these events, AIC, PAVI and NASC (Plaintiffs) filed a lawsuit against PDI, its owner and a subsidiary 
company (Defendants) seeking an injunction against competition and also recovery of damages for breach of fiduciary 
duty, fraud and violations of the Alaska Unfair Trade Practices Act. PDI and its owner filed counterclaims against AIC, 
PAVI, NASC, CIRI and Nabors Industries, Inc. including claims for alleged wrongful entry of a preliminary injunction 
against the owner prohibiting him from competing against AIC, anti-trust claims, and breach of contract claims under 
the Operating Agreement. 
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This case went to trial in late July 2007 and, in October 2007, the jury returned a verdict. The jury found PDI and John 
Ellsworth guilty of fraud, breach of fiduciary duties, breach of contract and unfair trade practices totaling almost 
$8,000,000. The jury also found that PDI should receive the $12,000,000, noted above, for its 20% interest in AIC 
pursuant to the Operating Agreement. After trial, despite the jury verdict, the judge granted judgment notwithstanding 
the verdict on the statutory unfair trade practices claim, a claim that should have entitled AIC, PAVI and NASC to three 
times the actual damages of $7,316,000, or approximately $22 million, under Alaska law. Due to post-trial motion 
practice, judgment in this case was not entered until March 3, 2009. Judgment has been entered against John Ellsworth 
and PDI in the amount of $10,266,000 including interest. Judgment awarded to John Ellsworth and PDI of $14,002,000 
including interest is principally the $12,000,000 for the 20% interest in AIC. The court has yet to determine whether any 
party is entitled to attorneys’ fees. It is expected both sides will appeal. It is not possible to reliably predict the outcome, 
or to estimate the likely range of any gain or loss, associated with this litigation, including the upcoming appeal. 
 
Resort Hotels 
The Company invested in several limited liability companies formed to build and operate resort properties in Nevada, 
Arizona and Texas. Summary financial information for these unconsolidated entities which are accounted for using the 
equity method, is as follows: 
 

Combined Balance Sheets
(in thousands)

December 31, 2008 2007 December 31, 2008 2007
Assets: Liabilities and equity:

Current assets $ 8,577      12,011    Current liabilities $ 8,704      6,537      
Noncurrent assets 106,944 115,001 Noncurrent liabilities 73,975   77,368    

Equity 32,842   43,107    

$ 115,521 127,012 $ 115,521 127,012  

December 31, 2008 2007

Equity allocable to the Company $ 10,599      14,244       
Equity method goodwill 47 47

$ 10,646      14,291       

Combined Statements of Income
(in thousands)

Years ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006
Revenues $ 56,853   55,901   487,178   
Expenses 62,270   59,301   148,614   

Net income (loss) $ (5,417)    (3,400)    338,564   

Net income (loss) allocable to the Company $ (1,966)       (1,132)       97,956         

 
The Company contributed $20,284,000 for a 32.6% member interest in Bastrop Resort Partners, LP (Bastrop), which built 
and operates the 492-room Hyatt Regency Lost Pines Resort and Spa (Lost Pines). Lost Pines opened in June 2006. 
Bastrop’s long-term debt with an outstanding balance as of December 31, 2008 of $73,715,000 is secured by 
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receivables, property and other assets. In addition, the parents of each member of Bastrop have guaranteed payment of 
the loan equal to their respective member’s interest in Bastrop times 25% of the outstanding note. This guarantee 
expires once the hotel has reached certain operating stabilization parameters specified in the loan agreement.  The 
parents of each member are also severally liable for any environmental, ERISA and “bad acts” claims. The Company 
recognized losses of $1,584,000, $1,186,000 and $4,709,000 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, from this investment. 
The loss for 2006 was primarily pre-opening and start up costs. 
 
The Company holds a 32.6% member interest in Bastrop Land Partners, LP, which owns 250 acres of land adjacent to 
Lost Pines. To date, the Company has invested $283,000 for its interest and has committed to fund its share of the 
carrying costs of the land. Future use of this land has not yet been determined. 
 
In early 2009, the Company contributed approximately 2.6 acres of land near San Antonio, Texas for a 50% interest in 
Sonterra Hotel Investors, LLC. This newly-formed limited liability company will build and own a 127-room Hyatt Place 
Hotel, a limited service hotel. The contributed land is part of a 22-acre multi-use commercial real estate development 
the Company has been developing over the last several years. 
 
The Company held a 50% member interest in MonteLago Hotel Holdings, LLC (MLH LLC), which sold the 493-room 
Hyatt Regency Lake Las Vegas Resort, Spa and Casino in December 2006. The Company received its final distributions 
from MLH LLC of $103,000 in 2008, $2,600,000 in 2007 and $59,984,000 in 2006. The Company recognized a loss of 
$90,000 in 2008 and income of $52,705,000 in 2006 from this investment. 
 
The Company held a 20.8% member interest in The Kierland Resort Company, LLC, which sold the 732-room Westin 
Kierland Resort and Spa in September 2006. The Company received its final distributions from this investment totaling 
$2,992,000 in 2007 and $55,667,000 in 2006. The Company recognized income from this investment of $54,000 in 2007 
and $55,870,000 in 2006.  
 
The Company held a 46.4% member interest in Village Hotel Holdings, LLC (VHH), which built and operated the 349-
room The Ritz-Carlton, Lake Las Vegas (Ritz).  The Ritz opened in early 2003. The Company sold its interest in VHH in 
December 2006 and received $5,000,000 in cash and a $13,500,000 note receivable. The Company did not record the 
note as proceeds due to the uncertainty of collection and recognized a loss of $26,178,000 on the sale of its ownership 
percentage in VHH. The note receivable was collateralized by this ownership percentage in VHH. In February 2009, the 
principal lender foreclosed on the property, the principal asset of VHH. As such, the Company will not receive any 
collections from the note receivable.  In 2006, the Company also recorded its allocated share of loss from VHH of 
$5,910,000.
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Telecommunications 
The Company holds the controlling interest in and is the managing member of Cook Inlet/VS GSM VII PCS Holdings, LLC 
(CIVS VII). Summary financial information for this unconsolidated telecommunication entity is as follows: 
 

Combined Balance Sheets
(in thousands)

December 31, 2008 2007 December 31, 2008 2007
Assets: Liabilities and equity:

Current assets $ 3              7              Current liabilities $ 370         249         
Noncurrent assets 278,989 261,209 Noncurrent liabilities -               -               

Equity 278,622 260,967 
$ 278,992 261,216 $ 278,992 261,216 

December 31, 2008 2007

Equity allocable to the Company $ -                    -                    

Combined Statements of Income
(in thousands)

Years ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006

Revenues $ 913,837 752,553 598,252    
Expenses 896,205 738,086 587,140    

Net income $ 17,632    14,467   11,112      

Net income allocable to the Company $ -                     -                     -                         

CIVS VII was formed by the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of T-Mobile USA, Inc. (T-Mobile) to acquire licenses 
to operate wireless telecommunications systems. T-Mobile is a wholly-owned subsidiary of DT. In early 2005, CIVS VII’s 
wholly-owned subsidiary was the successful bidder in an FCC auction for licenses to operate wireless 
telecommunications systems in 35 markets in the United States at a cost of $235,188,000. The Company contributed 
equity capital of $80,050,000 to CIVS VII to fund a portion of the purchase price of the licenses. The balance of the cost 
of the licenses was funded by T-Mobile through capital contributions. Pursuant to an exchange rights agreement with T-
Mobile, the Company has the right, but not the obligation, to exchange its interest in CIVS VII. See note 5 for further 
description of this agreement. 
 
Natural Resources 
In 2007, the Company formed Alaska Wind Energy, LLC (AWE) with enXco Development Corporation, a wind project 
development and construction company, to pursue wind power and other renewable energy projects in the state of 
Alaska. Prior to the formation of AWE, the Company expended $295,000 for the study of wind energy on certain parcels 
of land in the Cook Inlet region owned by the Company. The data from these expenditures were the Company’s 
contributions for its 50% interest in AWE.  The Company is committed to fund future capital requirements, as approved, 
and as such contributed an additional $245,000 through December 31, 2008.  
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Summary financial information for AWE recorded under the equity method of accounting is as follows: 

Combined Balance Sheets
(in thousands)

December 31, 2008 2007 2008 2007
Assets: Liabilities and equity:

Current assets $ 78      31       Current liabilities $ 432      20      
Noncurrent assets 40      -          Noncurrent liabilities -            -         

Equity (314)     11      
$ 118    31       $ 118      31      

December 31, 2008 2007

Equity allocable to the Company $ (154)     9         

Combined Statements of Operations
(in thousands)

Years ended December 31, 2008 2007
Revenues $ -            -           
Expenses 816      578     

Net loss $ (816)   (578)  

Net loss allocable to the Company $ (408)     (289)    

Private Equities 
The Company has invested in and has commitments for future investments in several private equity funds. These funds 
invest in a broad variety of industries, both domestic and foreign. Summary financial information for the fund recorded 
under the equity method of accounting is as follows: 

Combined Balance Sheets
(in thousands)

December 31, 2008 2007 December 31, 2008 2007
Assets: Liabilities and equity:

Current assets $ 1,875     623         Current liabilities $ 62           1,540       
Noncurrent assets 17,096   19,842   Noncurrent liabilities -              -                

Equity 18,909   18,925     
$ 18,971   20,465   $ 18,971   20,465     

December 31, 2008 2007

Equity allocable to the Company $ 5,439         5,445            
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Years ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006

Revenues $ (1,335)   (4,277)      20,200    
Expenses 480        742           1,209      

Net income (loss) $ (1,815) (5,019)    18,991    
 

Net income (loss) allocable to the Company $ (616)       (3,040)       8,142       

Combined Statements of Operations
(in thousands)

 
Investments held by private equity funds are valued using the most current information provided by the manager. 
Managers typically value privately held companies at cost as adjusted based on recent arm’s length transactions. Public 
companies are valued using quoted market prices and exchange rates, if applicable. Valuations provided by the 
managers are evaluated by the Company and the Company believes such values are reasonable at December 31, 2008. 
For the private equity fund carried on the equity method, the net realized and unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in 
fair value of investments is reflected in the statements of operations. 
 
The Company’s carrying value of its remaining investments in private equity funds are carried at cost and total 
$52,690,000 and $39,531,000 as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The Company recorded losses of 
$4,254,000 from these funds for the year ended December 31, 2008 and gains of $27,319,000 and $31,343,000 for the 
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
 
The Company has outstanding commitments to invest an additional $52,980,000 in these funds.
 
Investment Securities 
The Company has included in its assets classified as investment securities an investment in a multi-manager hedge 
fund, which the Company records under the equity method of accounting. Summary financial information for this fund 
is as follows: 

Combined Balance Sheets
(in thousands)

December 31, 2008 2007 December 31, 2008 2007
Assets: Liabilities and equity:

Current assets $ 59,143   19,153    Current liabilities $ 328          258           
Noncurrent assets 490,034 599,139 Noncurrent liabilities 13,409    32,836     

Equity 535,440  585,198   
$ 549,177 618,292 $ 549,177  618,292   

December 31, 2008 2007

Equity allocable to the Company $ 11,074       14,002         
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Years ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006

Revenues $ (133,089) 53,822  42,698 
Expenses 8,831       7,609     5,015   

Net income  (loss) $ (141,920) 46,213  37,683 

Net income (loss) allocable to the Company $ (2,929)          1,306        1,356      

Combined Statements of Income
(in thousands)

 
 
Valuations for the holdings in the multi-manager hedge fund are based on quoted market prices and exchange rates for 
publicly held securities and valuation estimates of derivative instruments. The net realized and unrealized appreciation 
(depreciation) in fair value of investments is reflected in the statements of operations. 

 
(7) Real estate property holdings 
 
The following summarizes the Company’s direct holdings of real estate property at December 31, 2008 and 2007: 
 

December 31, 2008 2007

(in thousands)
Office and industrial rental property $ 23,293     23,187       
Less accumulated depreciation (7,824)      (7,325)        

15,469     15,862       

Property under development 47,998     41,680       
Property held for investment or development 82,699     78,753       

$ 146,166   136,295    
 
The Company received proceeds of $1,497,000, $10,461,000 and $3,730,000 and recognized gains of $554,000, 
$7,581,000 and $2,072,000 from the sales of real estate in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
 
The Company’s office buildings are leased to others under non-cancelable operating leases expiring at various times 
over the next five years. The cost and accumulated depreciation of these buildings under lease totaled $16,354,000 and 
$7,672,000, respectively, at December 31, 2008. Minimum future rental revenues are as follows: 
 

(in thousands)
2009 $ 1,974  
2010 2,053  
2011 2,065  
2012 1,269  
2013 101     

$ 7,462  

  Amount
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(8)  Property and equipment 
 
The following summarizes investments in property and equipment at December 31, 2008 and 2007: 
 

December 31, 2008 2007
  (in thousands)

Land and improvements $ 3,079      2,950          
Buildings and improvements 34,520    31,970        
Vessels and marine equipment 28,120    25,018        
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 13,628    12,008        
Work in progress 998         1,057          

80,345    73,003        
Less accumulated depreciation (33,547)  (29,503)      

$ 46,798    43,500        

 
(9)     Fair value measurements and the fair value option 
 
The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The following table presents the 
carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2008 and 2007: 
 

December 31, 2008 2007
 Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

(in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 83,814   83,814   40,680        40,680   
Marketable securities 24,340   24,340   226,793     226,793 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,170     3,170      5,664          5,664      
Receivables from investment security sales 54,494   54,494   -                   -               
Trade and other receivables 14,685   14,685   8,473          8,473      
Deutsche Telekom exchange rights agreement 115,479 115,479 104,986     104,986 
Notes payable and obligations under capital leases 12,456   11,974   9,658          9,658      

 
As disclosed in note 2, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 157 on January 1, 2008. This statement defines 
fair value, establishes a consistent framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure requirements for fair 
value measurement. This statement applies whenever assets or liabilities are required or permitted to be measured at 
fair value under currently existing standards. 
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In accordance with SFAS No. 157, the Company groups its assets and liabilities measured at fair value in three levels, 
based on the markets in which the assets or liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to 
determine fair value. These levels are: 

Level 1:  Valuation is based upon quoted prices for identical instruments traded in active exchange markets, 
such as the New York Stock Exchange. Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities, which 
are traded by dealers or brokers in active markets. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources 
for market transactions involving identical assets or liabilities. 
 
Level 2:  Valuation is based upon quoted market prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted 
techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market. 
 
Level 3:  Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use significant assumptions not observable 
in the market. These unobservable assumptions reflect the Company’s estimation of assumptions that market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques include use of option pricing 
models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques.  
 

The Company’s assets recorded at fair value include marketable securities, which are classified as available for sale, and 
Deutsche Telecom exchange rights agreement. Available-for-sale marketable securities are recorded at fair value on a 
recurring basis on quoted market prices or dealer quotes, where available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair 
values are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments or model-based valuation techniques. The 
Deutsche Telekom exchange rights agreement is recorded at fair value on a recurring basis calculated on the greater of 
the initial investment plus a guaranteed return on that investment or the fair value of a determined number of DT 
shares. The following table sets forth the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at 
December 31, 2008: 

Marketable Deutsche Telekom Total
Securities Exchange Rights  

Agreement

(in thousands)

Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for identical assets $ 24,340     -                24,340      
Level 2 - significant other observable inputs -            115,479       115,479    
Level 3 - significant unobservable inputs -            -                -             

$ 24,340    115,479      139,819   
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(10) Notes payable and obligations under capital leases 
 
The following summarizes notes payable and obligations under capital lease at December 31, 2008 and 2007: 
 

December 31, 2008 2007

(in thousands)
Real estate:

Mortgage note payable, interest at the greater of 5.25% or prime rate plus .25%,
  interest payable monthly, principal due April 2011; secured by real property with
  carrying value of $19,384,000 $ 7,705     4,000 

Mortgage note payable, interest at 7.5% payable monthly, principal due April 2009;
  secured by real property with carrying value of $6,605,000 3,560     4,050 

Mortgage note payable, interest at 7.5% payable monthly, principal due May 2009;
  secured by real property with carrying value of $3,938,000 1,149     1,320   
Unsecured note payable in monthly installments of $19,000 including interest
   at 8%, due July 2008 -              138       
Note payable, interest at the prime rate plus 5.5% payable monthly, principal and
  interest paid in full January 2008 -              73         

 
Natural resources - Note payable, due in annual installments of $2,500 through   
  September 2011 7             9           

Corporate - Capital lease bearing imputed interest of 7.3%, payable in monthly
  installments through December 2009 35          68         

$ 12,456  9,658   

 
Wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company have also guaranteed the three mortgage notes payable listed above under 
the real estate segment. The aggregate maturities of notes payable and obligations under capital lease for each of the 
three years subsequent to December 31, 2008 are $7,717,000 for 2009, $4,737,000 for 2010 and $2,000 for 2011. 
 
The Company has guaranteed $1,000,000 of a mortgage on the Ernie Turner Center, a drug and alcohol recovery center 
owned by Cook Inlet Tribal Council, a not-for-profit entity in the Cook Inlet region. The outstanding balance on the 
mortgage was $1,674,000 at December 31, 2008. At December 31, 2008, this debt obligation was current. 
 
(11)  Mandatory distributions pursuant to ANCSA 
 
Under Section 7(i) of ANCSA (as defined and clarified by the Section 7(i) Settlement Agreement [Settlement Agreement] 
entered into by the 12 Alaska-based regional corporations), 70% of net revenues received by a regional corporation 
from timber resources and resources from subsurface estate conveyed to it under ANCSA (less certain deductions) is to 
be divided annually by the receiving regional corporation among all 12 Alaska-based regional corporations, including 
itself, in proportion to the number of Alaska Natives originally enrolled in each regional corporation. 
 
Section 7(j) of ANCSA requires that 50% of the 70% allocation established by Section 7(i) of ANCSA and received by the 
regional corporation must be distributed to village corporations and at-large shareholders within the region. The 
amount distributed to village corporations and at-large shareholders is apportioned among them based on the 
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proportion of the Company's village series stock owned by village shareholders compared to the Company's non-village 
stock owned by at-large shareholders. The following schedule presents amounts due to other regions, at-large 
shareholders and village corporations at December 31, 2008 and 2007: 
 

December 31, 2008 2007

Current portion $ 18,120   10,041   
Long-term portion 579        1,274     

$ 18,699   11,315   

     (in thousands)

 
(12) Shareholders’ equity 
 
Distributions to Shareholders 
In early 2009, the CIRI Board of Directors amended its dividend policy whereby the total dividend payment to its 
shareholders in any given year was increased from 3.25% to 3.5% of shareholders’ equity, calculated as of December 31 
of the prior year. This amended the previous dividend policy adopted in early 2007. Accordingly, the Company paid 
dividends of $22,218,000 ($35.39 per share) in 2008 and $21,301,000 ($33.93 per share) in 2007 and expects to pay 
dividends totaling $22,121,000 ($35.24 per share) in 2009. 
 
In May 2000, the Company adopted an Elders’ Benefit Program to pay quarterly distributions through a revocable trust 
to certain original enrollees who are 65 years of age or older at the time of payment. The Company pays quarterly 
distributions of $450 for each eligible elder. Through December 31, 2008, cumulative distributions under the program 
since inception totaled $3,581,000. 
 
During 2003, the Company's shareholders approved the creation of an irrevocable trust, The CIRI Elders' Settlement 
Trust (the Trust), which substantially replaced the Elders' Benefit Program. The beneficiaries of the Trust are those living 
shareholders who attain the age of 65 and are original shareholders holding Class A voting stock.  For so long as the 
Trust has assets, the Trust shall distribute $450 quarterly to each beneficiary. The Company transferred $16,000,000 to 
the Trust in 2003. 
 
Common Stock 
Under provisions of ANCSA, each qualified Alaska Native originally enrolled to CIRI was entitled to 100 shares of Class A 
voting stock. Village series Class A stock and non-village series Class A stock were issued based on whether individuals 
were qualified and chose to receive village shares. The stock carries voting rights if the holder is an eligible Alaska Native 
or a descendant of a Native as defined in ANCSA. ANCSA requires, and CIRI’s Articles of Incorporation provide, that the 
Class A stock cannot be sold, pledged, assigned or otherwise alienated, except in certain circumstances pursuant to 
court decree or upon death. ANCSA permits transfer during a shareholder's life of CIRI’s currently outstanding stock to a 
child, grandchild, great-grandchild, niece, nephew, or (if the holder has reached the age of majority as defined by the 
laws of the State of Alaska) brother or sister of a shareholder, if such relative is a Native or a descendant of a Native as 
defined in ANCSA. 1,500,000 shares of village and 1,500,000 shares of non-village Class A stock are authorized, of which 
627,800 (109,100 shares of village and 518,700 shares of non-village) were issued and outstanding at December 31, 
2008. CIRI’s current outstanding stock will remain subject to these restrictions unless, pursuant to specified procedures, 
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a decision is made by shareholders to eliminate the restrictions. In addition to the Class A stock, CIRI’s Articles of 
Incorporation authorize the issuance of 2,000,000 shares of village and 2,000,000 shares of non-village Class B stock. 
None of the Class B stock had been issued at December 31, 2008. 
 
(13) Business segment information 
 
The operations of the Company are organized into principal segments by lines of business, including real estate, 
construction and government services, telecommunications, tourism, natural resources, private equities and investment 
securities.  Inter-segment sales are not material. 
 
Real estate operations include activities related the Company’s rental income properties, land developments, property 
management and brokerage services. Revenues include property rentals, property management fees and brokerage 
commissions as well as revenues from the development and sale of real estate holdings. The Company’s recent focus 
has been primarily on its holdings in Alaska and Texas and developments of residential and commercial land 
infrastructure and construction of commercial buildings for lease. In February 2008, the Company purchased an 80% 
interest in Pacific Tower Properties, Inc. (PTP). PTP is a property management and real estate brokerage firm in 
Anchorage, Alaska. 
 
Construction and government services operations include the Company's involvement in oilfield services and 
construction. In addition, this segment includes the Company’s operations that provide services to agencies of local, 
state and federal governments. 
 
Telecommunications operations represent the Company's involvement in wireless telephone services.   
 
The tourism segment includes the Company’s Alaska tourism operations and interests in out-of-state resorts. Alaskan 
operations include sightseeing cruises in Resurrection Bay and Prince William Sound and hotels in Talkeetna and 
Seward. The carrying value of the goodwill related to its Alaskan tourism operations was tested for impairment and 
resulted in a $7,922,000 charge against income in 2006 (note 2). The Company currently holds one investment in a 
resort located near Austin, Texas and is in the process of constructing a hotel near San Antonio, Texas. As stated in note 
6, the resort properties located at Lake Las Vegas, Nevada and Scottsdale/Phoenix, Arizona in which the Company held 
a minority interest were sold in 2006. 
 
In 2007, the Company sold the operating assets and its sole member interest in CIRI Lakeside Gaming Investors, LLC dba 
Casino MonteLago (Gaming). As a result of these transactions, the Company recognized net income of $242,000 in 
2007, net of income tax provision of $142,000. The sales were pursuant to a plan adopted in 2006 to discontinue the 
operations and dispose of the assets of Gaming. As such, in 2006, the Company wrote off its obligations under a capital 
lease and the related capital assets and wrote down Gaming’s remaining assets to their net realizable value. The losses 
from these entries plus other costs associated with the discontinuation of the gaming operations totaled $5,207,000, 
net of income tax benefits of $2,804,000. The operations of Gaming have been segregated in the consolidated 
statements of operations as income (loss) from discontinued gaming operations, net of income tax benefits. 
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Natural resource operations include activities of the Company related to interests in the subsurface estate of land 
received pursuant to ANCSA or otherwise acquired by the Company, with revenues relating primarily to royalty 
payments from oil and gas production on the Company's lands, sales and leases of subsurface estate, and resource 
payments from other Alaska Native regional corporations under Section 7(i) of ANCSA. The Company has also entered 
into contracts for the extraction of sand and gravel from its properties. In addition, the Company is researching 
alternative energy investments and is investigating the opportunity for wind energy on several of its properties within 
Alaska. 
 
Private equities include the Company's limited partnership interests in private equity funds and venture capital funds. 
 

Investment securities include the Company’s holdings of debt and equity securities. 
 

Information by business segment as of and for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 follows: 

 2008 2007 2006
(in thousands)

Segment income (loss):
Real estate $ 2,661      5,203          1,720             
Construction and government services 4,893      14,856       16,144          
Telecommunications 10,874    10,502       8,956             
Tourism (253)        1,508          63,127          
Natural resources 15,160    9,218          6,473             
Private equities (4,870)     24,279       39,485          
Investment securities (57,427)   22,152       18,341          

(28,962)   87,718       154,246        
General and administrative and shareholder relations expense (11,724)   (13,372)      (14,296)         
Donations to Alaska Native not-for-profit organizations (410)        (356)            (427)               

Income (loss) before income taxes and discontinued operations (41,096)   73,990       139,523        
Income tax benefit (provision) 18,279    (17,658)      (19,052)         

Net income (loss) before discontinued operations (22,817)   56,332       120,471        
Income (loss) from discontinuation of gaming operations:

Loss from gaming operations, net of income taxes -               -                   (6,466)           
Income (loss) on sale and write-down of gaming assets
  and other costs, net of income taxes -               242             (5,207)           

Consolidated net income (loss) $ (22,817)   56,574       108,798        

Total assets by segment:
Real estate $ 180,715  164,186     93,803          
Construction and government services 65,074    72,454       63,420          
Telecommunications 116,445  105,850     96,977          
Tourism 62,189    62,054       78,539          
Natural resources  12,672    5,849          3,497             
Private equities 58,129    44,975       45,638          
Investment securities 157,854  260,028     309,557        
General and administrative and shareholder relations 34,248    10,888       6,490             

Consolidated assets $ 687,326  726,284     697,921        
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Information by business segment as of and for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, continues: 
 

 2008 2007 2006

(in thousands)
Capital expenditures by segment:

Real estate $ 11,802    45,871       32,752          
Construction and government services 27            14               -                      
Tourism 6,580      5,026          1,569             
General and administrative and shareholder relations 826          4,249          260                

Consolidated capital expenditures $ 19,235    55,160       34,581          

Depreciation, depletion and amortization by segment (from continuing operations):
Real estate $ 399          334             318                
Construction and government services 10            3                  -                      
Tourism 3,783      3,424          3,242             
General and administrative and shareholder relations 337          230             252                

Consolidated depreciation, depletion and amortization $ 4,529      3,991          3,812             

(14) Income taxes 

In February 1992, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, which 
requires, among other things, that the Company recognize income tax benefits for loss carryforwards, credit 
carryforwards and certain temporary differences for which tax benefits have not previously been recorded. A valuation 
allowance on deferred tax assets would then be provided when it is more likely than not that some part of the deferred 
tax asset will not be realized. Because of the unique tax attributes of ANCSA corporations, management believes that 
implementation of SFAS No. 109 would result in misleading financial statements and has not implemented SFAS No. 
109. The Company has not determined the effect on the consolidated financial statements of not implementing SFAS 
No. 109. 
 
The Company and its subsidiaries file consolidated federal and state income tax returns where applicable. The actual tax 
for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 differs from the "expected" tax, computed by applying the U.S. 
federal corporate income tax rate of 35% to income (loss) before income taxes, as follows: 

Years ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006

 (in thousands)
Computed "expected" income tax benefit (expense) $ 14,384  (26,031)   (42,547)   
State income tax, net of federal income tax deduction 2,511    (4,544)     (7,428)     
Net permanent differences 3,196    4,213       1,063       
Changes in prior year estimates and other (1,812)   4,846       28,745    
Utilization of state tax loss carryforwards -             3,716       7,400       

Income tax benefit (provision) $ 18,279  (17,800)   (12,767)   
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As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had recorded deferred tax liabilities of $234,000 and $4,113,000, 
respectively, related to unrealized gains on investment securities. These deferred income taxes are included as a 
component of other comprehensive income. 
 
The income tax benefit (provision) includes amounts estimated to be payable based on management's interpretation of 
various federal and state tax regulations. Various income tax returns filed by the Company are subject to audit by the 
respective taxing authorities and the Company’s federal income tax returns for 2004, 2005 and 2006 , as amended, are 
presently being audited by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). 
 
(15)  Retirement plans 
 
The Company has qualified defined contribution plans covering substantially all employees meeting certain eligibility 
requirements. The plans allow for the Company to make discretionary and non-discretionary contributions to the plan 
based upon participant contributions and compensation subject to certain statutory limits. Contributions to the plans 
totaled $910,000, $733,000 and $670,000 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and are included in the statements of 
operations. 
 
In February 2007, the CIRI Board of Directors approved a long-term incentive plan for the officers of the Company. The 
plan provides an incentive opportunity based on each individual officer’s annual salary times a specified percentage. 
The incentive is earned and payable only if targeted cumulative net income for a set cycle of years is attained. Three 
cycles ranging from three to five years began with the year ended December 31, 2007 with the payout of the first cycle 
in 2010. As the year ended December 31, 2008 resulted in a net loss for the Company, it is unlikely targeted cumulative 
net income for the cycles will be attained. Therefore, $1,014,000, which had been accrued in 2007, was reversed in 2008. 
 
The Company has a variable non-qualified deferred compensation plan applicable to key executives, whereby the 
executives previously elected to defer a portion of their base salary and/or bonus. The Company does not contribute 
additional amounts under the plan. The amounts deferred were credited to the respective executive's account under 
the plan. The plan contains specific terms as to how such deferrals will ultimately be paid. The funds deferred under the 
plan are held in a rabbi trust, which is subject to claims of the general creditors of the Company. As a result of the rules 
for non-qualified deferred compensation plans contained in the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, the Company 
elected to cease allowing deferrals into the plan for compensation earned after January 1, 2005. As of December 31, 
2008 and 2007, the assets held in the trust were $909,000 and $1,339,000, respectively, and are included in restricted 
cash and marketable securities on the balance sheets of the accompanying financial statements. As of December 31, 
2008 and 2007, the liabilities under this plan were also $909,000 and $1,339,000, respectively, and are included in 
accrued liabilities on the balance sheets of the accompanying financial statements. 
 
(16) Commitments and contingencies 
 
The Company has been informed by the State of Alaska that the State may seek to hold the Company financially 
responsible for remediation of contamination at a landfill and its associated and immediately adjacent exploration pad 
at Camp Lonely in northern Alaska. The Company holds a leasehold interest from the federal government in a site 
comprised of the camp and landfill. The Company denies liability for any cleanup on the grounds that the federal 
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government, and its contractors and prior lessees, were the sole users of the site during the period of time the Company 
leased the property. Further, the Company maintains that the federal government is contractually responsible for any 
necessary site remediation by virtue of the express terms of an agreement between the Company and the federal 
government regarding use of the site. Formal assessment work has been performed on the site and a feasibility study 
specifying remedial measures was approved by the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) in April 
2007. An updated cost study performed in late 2008 indicated the estimated cost of the remedial measures is 
$8,079,000. An additional cost to restore the portion of the gravel pad that will be impacted by the cleanup has been 
estimated at $2,800,000. The Company’s share of these projected cleanup expenses, if any, is not known at this time. No 
formal orders have been issued by the State against the Company or any other potentially responsible party to date. 
Although documents have been exchanged between the parties and the State, no formal discovery or motion practice 
has been conducted in the matter. Accordingly, the extent of the Company's liability, if any, and the extent of 
recoverability of costs from other responsible parties are currently unknown. 
 
The Company acquired property under ANCSA near the Skwentna River in southcentral Alaska. This property was 
formerly used by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). The ADEC has notified the Company and the FAA that an 
unpermitted landfill discovered immediately adjacent to the banks of the Skwentna River on this site must be removed. 
It is the position of the Company that the federal government is responsible for any and all contamination at the site. 
The FAA has expressed an apparent willingness to undertake the requisite removal and disposal activities. The Company 
was working with ADEC and the FAA to facilitate a cleanup of the site by the FAA, which has not happened. It is 
unknown whether ADEC will compel the Company to directly undertake the work or if the FAA will seek to recover any 
expenditures it incurs for the cleanup. Accordingly, the extent of the Company's liability, if any, is currently unknown. 
 
The Company believes that the final outcome resulting from these contingencies will not have a material effect on the 
Company’s financial position taken as a whole but could have an effect on future consolidated statements of operations 
and cash flows. For these potential environmental liabilities, the Company has accrued $1,063,000 as of December 31, 
2008. 
 
The Company is subject to various other contingencies arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of 
management, the ultimate outcome of such matters will not have a material effect on the financial position, results of 
operations or liquidity of the Company. 
 
The Company has various outstanding capital commitments to invest in partnerships, limited liability companies, real 
estate and other ventures in the ordinary course of business. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Cook Inlet Region, Inc.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cook Inlet Region, Inc. and subsidiaries 
(Company) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operations, 
changes in shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the 
three-year period ended December 31, 2008. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility 
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial 
statements based on our audits. We did not audit the 2006 financial statements of CIRI Lakeside Gaming 
Investors, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary, which statements reflect total revenues of $16,195,000. Those 
statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar 
as it relates to the amounts included for CIRI Lakeside Gaming, LLC, is based solely on the report of the other 
auditors. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of 
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

As more fully described in note 14, the Company applies a method of accounting for income taxes that is not 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America which require 
the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes 
(SFAS 109).  The effects on the consolidated financial statements of not adopting SFAS 109, although not 
determined, are presumed to be material. 

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, except for the effects of not 
implementing SFAS 109 as discussed in the preceding paragraph, the consolidated financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Cook Inlet Region, Inc. and 
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and  2007 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for 
each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2008 in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

April 1, 2009 
Anchorage, Alaska 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A) is 
designed to provide a reader of these financial statements with a narrative from the perspective of 
management on CIRI’s financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and certain other factors that may 
affect future results. The MD&A should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements 
and accompanying notes included in this Annual Report.  
 
Overview 
 
Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI) was incorporated in 1972 as one of 12 Alaska-based for-profit, private regional 
corporations created pursuant to the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act of 1971(ANCSA). ANCSA 
provided CIRI with a monetary entitlement of $34.4 million and the right to select a certain amount of land 
for conveyance from the federal government. As of December 31, 2008, CIRI’s shareholders’ equity has 
grown to $632.0 million, net of cumulative distributions to shareholders of $899.4 million.  
 
CIRI and its subsidiaries (the Company) have widely diversified business interests that include real estate 
and resource development, oilfield and construction services, government contracting, Alaska tourism and 
out-of-state resorts and telecommunications. CIRI also holds investments in various private equity and 
venture funds and a portfolio of marketable securities. The Company is certified as a Minority Business 
Enterprise. 
 
During 2008, a series of crises occurred in the U.S. financial and capital markets systems, as well as in the 
credit and housing markets. These conditions accelerated into an economic recession, as evidenced by 
declining consumer confidence, lower consumer spending, bankruptcies and significant job losses. The 
declining economic conditions worsened over the last half of 2008 and in the fourth quarter in particular. 
Equity and debt markets have seen major declines in market prices on a worldwide basis. 
 
CIRI’s holdings are not immune to these economic factors and CIRI is reporting a net loss for 2008. As 
shown in the following statement of operations by business segment, the 2008 loss is primarily attributable 
to losses realized from CIRI’s portfolio of marketable securities and investments in private equity funds. CIRI 
continues to be well capitalized and has little debt and therefore is positioned to withstand business cycles 
that arise as a result of this economic turmoil.  
 
Our strategic plan seeks to: 

Grow CIRI through prudent investments in a diverse portfolio of high-quality assets 
Capitalize on CIRI’s Alaska infrastructure, including oil, gas and other natural resources and real 
estate interests 
Pursue opportunities uniquely suited to a well-capitalized Alaska Native corporation 
Team with strong partners that have the ability and incentive to make our joint ventures succeed 
Seek investments that reflect market trends and long-term growth 
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Financial Condition 
 
Total Assets 
At the end of 2008, the Company’s assets totaled $687.3 million compared to $726.3 million and $697.9 
million at the end of 2007 and 2006, respectively. The following graph depicts assets by business segment 
as of December 31, 2008: 

Real Estate 
$180.7 Investment Securities 

$157.9 

Construction and Government Services
$65.1 

Private Equities
$58.1 

Tourism 
$62.2 

Natural Resources
$12.7 

Other 
$34.2 

Total Assets by Business Segment
(millions)

Telecommunications
$116.4 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 
Liquidity can be defined as the Company's ability to meet its obligations as they come due and to take 
advantage of investment opportunities as they arise. The Company's liquidity is represented by the amount 
of cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities, receivables from investment security sales and other assets 
that can be converted to cash in a relatively short time period, less liabilities that are due in the relative 
near-term.  
 
Throughout the three-year period, the Company has maintained a very strong level of liquidity. Total cash, 
cash equivalents and marketable securities totaled $165.8 million, $273.1 million and $315.1 million as of 
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
 
The Company plans to expand its operations and has commitments to invest in certain partnerships and 
limited liability companies. Liquidity may be reduced when such plans are executed or such commitments 
are honored. The Company’s relatively low long-term borrowing level and strong financial position can 
provide additional liquidity for future expansion. 
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The Company presents its balance sheets on an unclassified basis that does not separate current assets and 
current liabilities on the face of the statement. This practice is common for companies whose primary 
activity is investing. 
 
Providing for a steady shareholder dividend, the CIRI Board of Directors set the annual dividend policy as a 
percentage of total shareholders’ equity. In early 2009, the CIRI Board of Directors amended its dividend 
policy increasing the total dividend payment to its shareholders from 3.25% to 3.5% of shareholders’ equity, 
calculated as of December 31 of the prior year. The Company paid dividends of $22.2 million ($35.39 per 
share) in 2008, $21.3 million ($33.93 per share) in 2007, and $19.5 million ($31.00 per share) in 2006. The 
Company expects to pay dividends totaling $22.1 million ($35.24 per share) in 2009.  
 
Results of Operations 

For 2008, CIRI realized a net loss of $22.8 million with a loss before income tax benefit of $41.1 million. This 
is primarily the result of the world-wide economic crisis. As noted in the following schedule, the loss from 
investment securities was $57.4 million as CIRI’s investments in fixed income and equity securities suffered 
from the national recession and global economic downturn. A discussion of the Company’s business 
segments and the risk factors affecting each follows the statements of operations by business segment for 
the last three years. 

Years ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006
     (in thousands)

Operating income (loss):
Real estate $ 2,661        5,203          1,720          
Construction and government services 4,893        14,856       16,144       
Telecommunications 10,874     10,502       8,956          
Natural resources 15,160     9,218          6,473          
Tourism (253)          1,508          63,127       
Private equities (4,870)      24,279       39,485       
Investment securities (57,427)    22,152       18,341       

Segment operating income (loss) (28,962)    87,718       154,246     
General and administrative and shareholder relations
  expenses (11,724)    (13,372)      (14,296)      
Donations to Alaska Native not-for-profit organizations (410)          (356)            (427)            

Income (loss) before income taxes and discontinued operations (41,096)    73,990       139,523     
Income tax benefit (provision) 18,279     (17,658)      (19,052)      

Income (loss) before discontinued operations (22,817)    56,332       120,471     
Loss from discontinuation of gaming operations:

Loss from gaming operations, net of income tax benefits -                  -                   (6,466)        
Income (loss) on sale and write-down of gaming assets,
 net of income taxes -                  242             (5,207)        

Net income (loss) $ (22,817)    56,574       108,798     
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Real Estate 
Management continues to implement its plan to develop a diverse real estate portfolio which will produce 
a sustainable cash flow stream through various real estate strategies. Real estate strategies include raw land 
acquisition and development, land sales and leasing, and the construction, leasing and sales of income 
properties. These strategies are employed across a variety of sectors, including retail, industrial, office and 
residential, and with a geographic focus on Alaska and Texas. Properties were either acquired through the 
land selection process under ANCSA or purchased.  
 
Funds expended to purchase and develop real estate totaled $14.9 million in 2008, $58.3 million in 2007 
and $33.2 million in 2006. These investments were either made through joint venture entities with others or 
directly by the Company.  The carrying values of investments in real estate joint ventures were $18.0 
million, $14.9 million and $6.5 million as of December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.  
 
The following table summarizes the net book value of real estate directly held by the Company at the end 
of each of the last three years:  
 

December 31, 2008 2007 2006

          (in thousands)
Income property:

Office buildings $ 8,779       9,038        5,026         
Commercial/industrial 6,690       6,824        6,083         

15,469    15,862     11,109      
Property under development 47,998    41,680     9,359         

Property held for development
or investment 82,699    78,753     60,731      

$ 146,166    136,295     81,199       
 

Sales of real estate properties generated net proceeds of $1.5 million, $10.1 million and $3.7 million and 
gains of $554,000, $7.6 million and $2.0 million, in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Several major projects 
under development are discussed below. 
 
Tikahtnu Commons, a 95-acre regional retail and entertainment center in northeast Anchorage, is being 
developed by North Anchorage Real Estate Investors, LLC (NAREI). The Company contributed the land upon 
which Tikahtnu Commons is being built and cash for a 50% member interest in NAREI. Browman 
Development Company, Inc., the other 50% member, has substantial experience developing and managing 
large retail projects across the Western U.S and will continue to manage Tikahtnu Commons after build-out.  
 
Tikahtnu Commons’ first store, Target, opened in October 2008 with 176,000 square feet of retail. Additional 
retailers are set to open by June 2009 occupying 300,000 square feet of additional retail space. NAREI has 
executed a letter of intent with Regal Entertainment to build and lease a state-of-the-art 16-screen theater 
complex at Tikahtnu Commons, which will include Alaska’s first large IMAX theater.  Lease negotiations are 
in the final stages and financing for the building has been secured.  Construction is expected to begin this 
summer, with the theater planned to open in the second quarter of 2010. The theater complex will be the 
anchor attraction for the east half of the shopping center and should attract additional entertainment 
businesses, including restaurants, book stores and other specialty retailers.  
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New sales and leases of lot parcels and buildings at Tikahtnu Commons continues despite the economic 
downturn that has affected many retail chains in the Lower-48. The Company has secured multi-year leases 
from tenants; in addition, these tenants have invested substantial funds in the build-out of their stores. 
NAREI continues to construct build-to-suit and tenant-occupied buildings, lease building pads and sell 
parcels of land outright to business enterprises. Construction is expected to continue for another five to 
seven years. 
 
1400 Sonterra, is a 22-acre mixed use commercial real estate development in San Antonio, Texas. CIRI 
acquired the Sonterra parcel pursuant to its ANCSA land entitlement. CIRI has invested $3.9 million in site 
development construction, which consists of seven commercial pads. In January 2009, one pad was 
contributed to a joint venture in which CIRI is a 50% member for the purpose of constructing a Hyatt Place 
Hotel, as further discussed in the Tourism segment. Although the Company plans to construct a three 
building office project as an income-producing investment, start of construction has been delayed until 
economic conditions improve. 
 
The Company is developing the infrastructure for Escondido, Tuscany and Ladera, three separate residential 
subdivisions, on land holdings in and around San Antonio, Texas. The infrastructure in these subdivisions 
are constructed in phases with multiple-lot sales to a few select national or large regional home-building 
companies.  
 
Although the San Antonio housing market has not suffered as drastic a downturn as other areas of the 
country, lot sales to date are slower than originally projected and one builder under contract to purchase 
lots has filed bankruptcy. The contract with this builder was canceled and the Company recovered the 
unsold lots. These lots will be included under the contract with the remaining builder in the subdivision. 
The Company’s defense against the softening market conditions is to develop its properties in phases 
depending on the absorption of lots by the homebuilders. As such, the Company has slowed construction 
of additional phases to correspond to absorption rates until the local market strengthens. 
 
In February 2008, the Company purchased an 80% interest in Pacific Tower Properties, Inc. (PTP). PTP 
provides property management, commercial real estate brokerage and construction management services 
in Alaska. The Company anticipates benefits from the ownership of this entity as it further develops its 
commercial real estate portfolio in and around the Anchorage, Alaska area.   
 
Construction and Government Services 
Construction services includes ownership of a partnership interest in Peak Oilfield Service Co. (Peak) and a 
limited liability company member interest in Alaska Interstate Construction, LLC (AIC).  These entities 
provide construction, mining services, equipment maintenance and oilfield services, primarily in Alaska. 
Operating income from the construction services business segment was $5.8 million in 2008, $15.6 million 
in 2007 and $16.8 million in 2006. Decreased operating income from this segment is attributed to declines 
in available mining and related projects, increased fuel prices and additional competition in Alaska’s North 
Slope oil fields. 
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Profits from the activities of these ventures will continue to fluctuate with changes in the construction, 
public works, oilfield, oil and gas and mining industries. These ventures are exposed to the business and 
credit risks associated with receiving a significant concentration of their revenues from a small number of 
major oil companies operating in Alaska’s North Slope oil fields and mining companies operating in Alaska. 
 
Government contracting subsidiaries of the Company participate, where appropriate, in contracts offered 
by the government to small businesses owned by Alaska Native corporations. The Company has organized 
a holding company for those subsidiaries primarily pursuing government contracting opportunities. Two 
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company have received 8(a) certifications from the U.S. Small Business 
Administration (SBA) as Small Disadvantaged Businesses.   The certification program is generally known as 
the Section 8(a) program.  With the certifications, the subsidiaries can bid on contracts set aside specifically 
for 8(a)-certified entities as well as other small business contracts. During 2006, the Company began 
operations and performed work under a subcontract for the U.S. Army Space and Missile Defense 
Command/Army Strategic Command. In 2007, the Company performed work under a subcontract for U.S. 
Air Force Space Command. Additionally, a subsidiary division was formed to perform construction 
contracting. That division performed work for the Port of Anchorage Expansion Project, the Municipality of 
Anchorage and Elmendorf Air Force Base. In 2008, a subsidiary was awarded a contract and built a steel 
girder bridge in Washington state with a significant contract to AIC as its sub-contractor on this project. The 
subsidiary also performed work as a sub-contractor at White Sands Missile Range. Finally, the company was 
awarded work as a sub-contractor for the U.S. Army Strategic command with work commencing in 2009. 
Operating loss from the Company's government services division was $960,000 for 2008, $760,000 for 2007 
and $561,000 for 2006, primarily from costs associated with business development, strategic planning, 
entity formation and business development expenses. 
 
Participation by Alaska Native corporations in the 8(a) program has been the subject of political interest 
and reports by the U.S. Government Accountability Office and the SBA Inspector General.  The results of this 
activity are not yet known, but could adversely affect the Company’s participation in the program.  The 
Company’s strategy is to increasingly pursue contracting opportunities which are not dependent upon the 
sole sourcing provisions of Section 8(a). 
 
Telecommunications 
Since the mid-1990s, the Company’s telecommunications division focused on investments in the wireless 
telecommunications business. The Company began operating partnerships and limited liability companies 
with wireless telecommunications industry leaders in 1995. Income from the telecommunications division 
for 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $10.9 million, $10.5 million and $9.0 million, respectively. 
 
The Company currently holds the managing member interest in a limited liability company controlled by 
the Company, in which a wholly-owned subsidiary of T-Mobile USA, Inc. (T-Mobile) owns a non-controlling 
interest. T-Mobile is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Deutsche Telecom AG (DT), a large international 
telecommunications company. The Company invested a total of $80.0 million in this venture during 2004 
and 2005. In 2005, the venture was the successful bidder on 36 Federal Communications Commission 
licenses to operate wireless telecommunications systems in 35 markets throughout the United States. The 
Company has the right but not the obligation to exchange its interests in the limited liability company for a 
value equal to its initial investment in CIVS VII plus 10% compounded annually or 4,128,000 shares of DT  
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stock, whichever is greater. Payment to the company will be in DT shares or, if elected by DT, cash. The 
Company’s carrying value of this investment is $115.5 million as of December 31, 2008. The Company 
recognized income of $10.5 million in 2008, $9.5 million in 2007 and $8.7 million in 2006 pursuant to this 
investment. If the Company were to exercise its rights under the exchange rights agreement, then future 
income would cease upon the effective date of the exchange. 
 
Tourism 
The Company operates a tourism company in Alaska and has invested in joint ventures with others in the 
resort hotel and gaming businesses in the Southwest United States. 
 
The Company’s tourism properties, currently limited to holdings in Alaska and Texas, are exposed to the 
general health of the economy. The economic recession could have a detrimental effect on occupancies, 
load factors and rates. The various operating managers of these entities continue to monitor reservation 
levels and, if necessary, will implement cost saving measures. 
 
Alaska Tourism 
CIRI Alaska Tourism Corporation (CATC), the Company’s wholly-owned Alaska tourism subsidiary, markets 
its tourism products to Alaskans, customers of the major cruise lines, packaged tour providers, independent 
travelers to Alaska and visiting friends and relatives of Alaskans. CATC operates primarily in the summer 
season between April and October. 
 
CATC operates Kenai Fjords Tours, which provides wildlife cruises and other tourism services in Resurrection 
Bay and the Kenai Fjords National Park. In Prince William Sound, CATC operates a similar day cruise product 
under the brand name Prince William Sound Glacier Cruises. CATC’s fleet of 15 vessels includes two newly-
constructed 150-passenger catamarans placed in service in May 2007 and October 2008. 
 
CATC built and operates the Talkeetna Alaskan Lodge, a 212-room alpine lodge in Talkeetna, Alaska, near 
Mount McKinley and Denali National Park. CATC also operates the Seward Windsong Lodge, a 180-room 
hotel in Seward, Alaska, near Exit Glacier and Kenai Fjords National Park. A third lodge, the Kenai Fjords 
Wilderness Lodge, is located on Fox Island in the heart of Resurrection Bay and can accommodate 300 
lunch guests from sightseeing cruises and has 8 cabins with a capacity of 22 overnight guests. 
 
CATC’s operating income was $2.6 million in 2008, $2.6 million in 2007 and $912,000 in 2006.  Pursuant to 
an analysis of the carrying value of its goodwill, CATC wrote off $7.9 million of goodwill in 2006, which was 
recorded as a charge against income.  
 
CATC’s revenue levels are at risk as the 2009 Alaska visitor season is facing forecasted declines.  A major 
portion of CATC’s customers are passengers from the large cruise lines. The cruise line industry forecasts a 
decline in pre-booking for this summer indicating that CATC’s hotel occupancies and marine passenger 
counts may be less than in prior years.  Management will continue to monitor these factors and implement 
cost controls as warranted. 
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Tourism Resorts  
The Company invested in golf-oriented resort hotel properties near Austin, Texas, Lake Las Vegas, Nevada 
and Scottsdale/Phoenix, Arizona. The Company recorded a loss of $2.1 million in 2008 and $787,000 in 2007 
and income of $71.2 million for 2006 from these investments. As discussed below, the Company no longer 
holds investments in the Nevada or Arizona properties. 
 
The Company invested $20.3 million for a 32.6% interest in a limited partnership that developed and owns 
the Hyatt Regency Lost Pines Resort and Spa (Lost Pines) near Austin, Texas. Lost Pines, which opened in 
June 2006, is situated on approximately 400 acres overlooking the Colorado River immediately adjacent to 
the McKinney Roughs Nature Preserve. The 492-room hotel is set in a relaxed Texas country environment.  
Amenities include an 18-hole golf course, equestrian center, 18 miles of trails, river activities and easy 
access to the Austin music scene. Woodbine Development Corporation (Woodbine), the majority owner of 
Lost Pines, provides oversight of this property. Woodbine is an experienced hospitality and commercial 
property asset manager with several large properties under management. 
 
The Company’s share of losses from this investment totaled $1.6 million for 2008, $1.2 million for 2007 and 
$4.7 million for 2006. The loss for 2006 was principally comprised of pre-opening and startup costs.  The 
resort has not yet reached operating stabilization, which is consistent for the short length of time it has 
been open. The resort industry is bracing for the impacts of a depressed economy. Management at our 
resort continues to analyze revenue and implement cost controls to mitigate the downturn in occupancy 
and yields.  
 
Through December 31, 2008, the Company has invested $283,000 for a 32.6% member interest in Bastrop 
Land Partners, LP, which owns 250 acres adjacent to Lost Pines. The Company has committed to fund its 
share of the land’s carrying costs. Future use of the land is yet to be determined.  Once a development plan 
is adopted, the Company will decide whether to participate and commit its share of funding for the future 
development. If the Company does not participate, its interest in the partnership will be subject to 
acquisition by its partners. 
 
In early 2009, the Company contributed approximately 2.6 acres of land near San Antonio, Texas for a 50% 
interest in Sonterra Hotel Investors, LLC. This newly-formed limited liability company will build and own a 
127-room Hyatt Place Hotel (Hyatt Place), a limited service hotel. The land is part of 1400 Sonterra, a 22-acre 
multi-use commercial real estate development in San Antonio, Texas that the Company has been 
developing over the last several years. InterMountain Management, LLC (InterMountain) will manage the 
development and operation of the Hyatt Place. InterMountain manages over 50 limited service hotels 
across the United States. The owner of InterMountain is the other 50% member of Sonterra Hotel Investors, 
LLC. 
 
Dispositions of Tourism Resorts and Gaming Operations 
In 2006 and 2007, the Company divested its interests in resorts and gaming operations located in Nevada 
and Arizona.   
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The Company held interests in three separate limited liability companies which built and owned the Westin 
Kierland Resort and Spa in Scottsdale/Phoenix, Arizona; the Hyatt Regency Lake Las Vegas Resort and Spa 
in Henderson, Nevada; and the Ritz-Carlton, Lake Las Vegas in Henderson, Nevada. The three resorts were 
sold in 2006 and the Company received proceeds from the sales totaling $103,000 in 2008, $5.6 million in 
2007 and $120.7 million in 2006 and recognized a loss of $90,000 in 2008 and income of $54,000 in 2007 
and $76.5 million in 2006 (note 6 Investments in partnerships and limited liability companies accompanying 
the financial statements provides further details of these investments and sales). 
 
The Company was the sole member of CIRI Lakeside Gaming Investors, LLC (Lakeside Gaming) that 
operated a casino under the name Casino MonteLago at Lake Las Vegas, Nevada. Lakeside Gaming incurred 
substantial operating losses following its opening in mid-2003. Pursuant to a plan adopted in 2006 to 
discontinue the operations and dispose of the assets of Lakeside Gaming, the Company sold its sole 
member interest in Lakeside Gaming in September 2007.  
 
Lakeside Gaming’s operating losses have been segregated in the Company’s consolidated statements of 
operations as discontinued operations.  Losses from Lakeside Gaming’s operations were $6.5 million for 
2006 (net of income tax benefit of $3.5 million). In addition, the Company recorded a loss of $5.2 million 
(net of income tax benefit of $2.8 million) in 2006 that reflects the write-off of the obligations under a 
capital lease and the related capital assets, the write-down of the remaining capital assets to their net 
realizable value and other costs related to the planned discontinuation of the gaming operations. In 2007, 
the Company sold the operating assets and its sole member interest in Lakeside Gaming and recorded a 
gain of $242,000, (net of income tax provision of $142,000). (Note 13  Business segment information 
accompanying the financial statements provides further details of this investment and sale.) 
 
Natural Resources  
The Company is the largest private landowner in the Cook Inlet region.  By virtue of its subsurface 
ownership, the Company has historically been in the natural resources business.  We actively encourage 
environmentally responsible exploration of our lands. 
 
The Company continues to hold royalty interests in oil and gas fields in the Cook Inlet basin. Although 
some of the older royalty-producing units are significantly depleted, the combination of higher oil and gas 
sales prices and new production areas brought on line over the past few years has resulted in increased 
royalty revenues. Continued interest in the Company’s subsurface estate holdings have resulted in the 
issuance of new leases for exploration and development. Future royalty revenues from these fields are 
dependent upon the ability to economically produce the oil and gas as well as fluctuations in oil and gas 
prices. As such, management cannot provide reliable estimates for future net natural resource revenues. 
 
The Company has contracts for the extraction and sale of its sand and gravel resources, including a contract 
for large scale, industrial extraction near the village of Eklutna, located on the northern border of 
Anchorage, Alaska. The Company continues to study other opportunities for the extraction and sale of sand 
and gravel from its ANCSA land holdings. 
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Because the Company believes there are interesting investment opportunities to be found in the 
development of renewable and alternative energy resources it has adopted a strategy of evaluating the 
viability of new technologies that might diversify the sources of energy in the Alaska Railbelt.  Southcentral 
Alaska is heavily reliant on natural gas for both home heating and electrical generation. The Company is 
exploring the benefits of the application of new technology to both new sources of energy, such as wind, 
and to existing or traditional resources in a manner that will result in reliable clean energy resources.  
 
The Company formed Alaska Wind Energy, LLC (AWE), an entity held on a 50/50 basis with enXco 
Development Corporation (enXco). enXco, an affiliate of the EDF Group, is a national industry leader in 
wind project development and construction.  AWE is actively pursuing development of a wind farm on the 
Company’s lands on Fire Island, located in the Cook Inlet and within the Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska.  
Subject to the satisfaction of certain contingencies, including negotiation of power purchase agreements 
with off-takers, the Company intends to begin construction of the wind farm during the 2009 construction 
season.  Power from wind generation could be delivered into the Alaska Railbelt electric grid in late 2010 or 
2011. In addition, AWE is in the data-gathering stage for other wind and renewable energy projects in 
Alaska’s rail belt region. 
 
Resource revenue sharing income from other Alaska Native regional corporations, received pursuant to 
Section 7(i) of ANCSA, net of redistributions (7(i) receipts) was $11.1 million in 2008, $6.1 million in 2007 
and $3.9 million in 2006. Future 7(i) receipts will continue to fluctuate based on business decisions made by 
other Alaska Native regional corporations and on the market prices of the related natural resources.  
 
Investments in Private Equity and Venture Funds 
The Company has invested in and has commitments for future investments in several private equity and 
venture capital funds. The Company seeks to invest in funds with strong historical results and highly 
reputable senior management. These funds invest in a broad variety of industries, both domestic and 
foreign. To date, the Company has committed to invest $186.5 million in these funds. As of December 31, 
2008, $53.0 million of these commitments have yet to be funded.   
 
The Company’s basis in these private equity and venture capital funds totaled $58.1 million, $45.0 million 
and $45.6 million as of December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The Company recorded a loss of 
$4.9 million in 2008 and income of $24.3 million and $39.5 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively, from 
these funds.  
 
These investments will be at risk dependent upon future changes in global and domestic economic 
markets. We cannot predict the timing or the duration of this or any other economic downturn. 
 
Investment Securities 
Investment securities include cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities. This segment also includes 
investments in a multi-manager hedge fund and a fund that invests in collateralized loan obligations. These 
holdings are part of our ongoing liquidity management, providing working capital for recurring operating 
and general and administrative expenses as well as funds for continued expansion and shareholder 
dividends.  
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A summary of the Company's holdings of investment securities for the last three years is as follows:  
 

December 31, 2008 2007 2006
  (in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 83,814       40,680         114,863      

Receivables from investment security sales 54,494       -                     -                    

Marketable securities:
Debt securities 22,550       80,206         89,307        
Equities 1,790          146,587       105,110      

24,340       226,793       194,417      
Investments in alternative funds:

Multi-manager hedge fund 11,074       14,002         12,697        
Collateralized loan obligations 700              1,375            7,771           

$ 174,422    282,850       329,748      
 

The Company’s portfolio of marketable securities and investments in alternative funds decreased 
substantially in value during the fourth quarter of 2008 as foreign and domestic equity markets went into 
free fall and the global recession deepened. The Company realized a $57.4 million loss in 2008 on our 
holdings. The capital loss generated by the sale of these marketable securities will be carried back to prior 
years to offset income taxes paid on capital gains generated during those years. As a result the Company 
expects to receive an income tax refund in excess of $20.0 million in late 2009.  
 
Income realized from marketable securities was $20.5 million for 2007 and $19.9 million for 2006. The 
Company’s strategic plan includes maintaining a portfolio of marketable securities allocated across a 
diversified mix of strategies and fund managers. Accordingly, in early 2009, the Company re-invested a 
substantial portion of cash and cash equivalents in marketable securities.  The result will be a portfolio of 
debt and equity securities with equity holdings balanced among large, medium and small capitalized 
companies; domestic and foreign. The holdings will be managed by third-parties chosen for their expertise 
in each area of the market. These securities purchased in 2009 will be classified as “trading securities” as 
defined in the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115  Accounting for Certain 
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. Under these provisions, any change in the market value of the 
securities will be reflected in the statement of operations.  
 
Investment securities include contributions in funds that invest in collateralized loan obligations.  The 
Company received dividends and principal payments totaling $262,000 in 2008, $6.8 million in 2007 and 
$1.7 million in 2006 from these funds.  The Company’s carrying value of this investment at December 31, 
2008 is $700,000. 
 
The Company invested $10.0 million in a multi-manager hedge fund in 2004, which has a carrying value of 
$11.1 million as of December 31, 2008. The Company recognized a loss of $2.9 million in 2008 and income 
of $1.3 million and $1.4 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively from this investment. This fund has no 
exposure to either the Madoff or Stanford hedge funds.  
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The Company’s investment securities will be at risk dependent upon future changes in global and domestic 
economic markets. While management believes that these extraordinary conditions of the domestic and 
global markets are temporary and that equity prices will ultimately rise over time and that credit markets 
will normalize, there exists at this writing pessimism and continued disarray in the capital markets.  Warren 
E. Buffet, CEO of Berkshire Hathaway , in his recent letter to Berkshire shareholders states, “When investing, 
pessimism is your friend, euphoria the enemy.”  While we cannot predict the timing or the duration of the 
pessimism or disarray or any other economic downturn in the public markets, the Company views an 
investment in marketable securities as an essential tool in the management of financial assets. The fair 
values of our investment portfolios are subject to considerable volatility, particularly over the short term. 
  
Critical Accounting Estimates  
Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Our significant accounting policies are discussed in note 2 Summary of significant accounting 
policies accompanying the consolidated financial statements of this report. In connection with the 
preparation of our financial statements, we are required to make assumptions and estimates about future 
events, and apply judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and 
the related disclosures. Amounts recognized in the financial statements from such estimates are necessarily 
based on numerous assumptions involving varying and potentially significant degrees of judgment and 
uncertainty.  Actual results could differ from our assumptions and estimates, and such differences could be 
material. 

Areas in which accounting estimates could be materially different from the final results include income tax 
contingencies; fair value of long-lived assets, investments in partnerships and limited liability companies 
carried on the cost method, goodwill and other intangibles; and environmental and other loss 
contingencies.  
 
Forward-Looking Statements 
This MD&A may contain statements that are not purely historical, or that may be considered an opinion or 
projection concerning the Company, whether expressed or implied. These forward-looking statements may 
relay management’s expectations, intentions, plans or strategies regarding the future. It is important to 
note that the Company’s actual results could differ significantly from those described in, or implied from, 
such statements. Factors which may affect the results include the continued uncertainty in the global 
economy, volatility in the price of Alaska’s oil and other resource commodities, stock market performance, 
and the inability to pass inflation-based cost increases through to customers. Future revenues and income 
are influenced by a number of factors, including those outlined above, which are inherently difficult to 
forecast. However, the Company believes that it has the competitive and financial resources for continued 
business success in the segments in which it chooses to invest.  
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